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1st Circuit rules that claimant's failure to furnish cross-statement of facts consti​tuted admission of government's asser​tions. (390) The 1st Circuit re​jected claimant's contention that he was an inno​cent owner. The burden of proving the defense of in​nocent ownership rests with the claimant. Claimant's initial opposition to the govern​ment's motion for summary judgment in​cluded no affidavits, only a general denial of some allegations in the forfeiture complaint and a "weasel-worded challenge" to the thrust of the detailed affidavits supporting the forfei​ture complaint. More​over, claimant failed to furnish the required cross-statement of facts. Thus, his un​excused omissions had the legal effect of admitting the government's factual as​sertions. U.S. v. Parcel of Land and Resi​dence at 18 Oakwood Street, 958 F.2d 1 (1st Cir. 1992).xe "U.S. v. Parcel of Land and Resi​dence at 18 Oakwood Street, 958 F.2d 1 (1st Cir. 1992)."
1st Circuit rules title dispute did not pro​hibit for​feiture of real property on which marijuana was grown. (390) The district court ordered summary judgment in favor of the government against property on which marijuana was grown. The 1st Circuit re​jected claimant's argument that summary judgment was improper because an unrelated party claimed ti​tle to a portion of the prop​erty. Claimant contended that this claim barred forfeiture since the marijuana crop may have been grown on land belonging to the third party. The 1st Circuit upheld the summary judgment, because defendant failed to present suffi​cient evidence to negate the property's connection with the illegal activi​ties. The government may treat as unitary, for purposes of an ini​tial seizure warrant, any tract over which an owner or group of owners ex​ercises dominion and treats as its own. De​fendant failed to present sufficient evi​dence to negate the property's connection with the il​legal activi​ties or to show that he was an in​nocent owner. U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Property with Buildings, Appurte​nances, and Improvements, Known as Plat 20, 960 F.2d 200 (1st Cir. 1992).xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Property with Buildings, Appurte​nances, and Improvements, Known as Plat 20, 960 F.2d 200 (1st Cir. 1992)."
1st Circuit affirms default judgment in forfei​ture case. (390) On February 28, 1990, the government filed a mo​tion for summary judg​ment in a forfeiture action in​volving cur​rency found in claimant's home. The motion was un​opposed. On April 6, 1990, claimant's counsel withdrew. The district court granted summary judgment for the government on May 22, 1990 and judgment was entered the next day. De​fendant filed a pro se motion for relief from judgment, which was denied. On appeal, de​fendant at​tacked the summary judgment on the ground that the failure to oppose it was the re​sult of ex​cusable neglect and misrep​resentations by his attorney. The 1st Circuit rejected this contention, since a client is bound by the acts and omissions of his attorney. Claimant's incarceration did not prevent his attorney from filing a timely opposition to the government's mo​tion for summary judgment. U.S. v. One Lot of $25,721.00 in Currency, 938 F.2d 1417 (1st Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. One Lot of $25,721.00 in Currency, 938 F.2d 1417 (1st Cir. 1991)."
1st Circuit upholds striking claimant's affi​davit after he in​voked the 5th Amendment. (390) In response to the gov​ernment's motion for summary judgment, the claimant filed an affidavit disputing many of the facts re​lied on by the gov​ernment. The government withdrew the motion pending the claimant's deposition. At his deposition, however, the claimant in​voked his 5th Amendment privilege in re​sponse to all questions con​cerning his involve​ment in drug traf​ficking, the sources of his in​come, and his alleged use of narcotics proceeds to purchase the properties. As a result the district court granted the mo​tion to strike his affidavit, and the 1st Circuit affirmed. The court held that it was "well ac​cepted" that a witness's direct testimony can be stricken if he invokes the 5th Amendment in cross examina​tion to shield that testimony from scrutiny. The district court made sufficient efforts to ac​commodate the claimant's 5th Amendment dilemma. It did not abuse its discretion in re​fusing to delay its ruling despite the claimant's last minute change of heart. U.S. v. Parcels of Land, Etc., Et al., 903 F.2d 36 (1st Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. Parcels of Land, Etc., Et al., 903 F.2d 36 (1st Cir. 1990)."
1st Circuit upholds summary judgment for​feiting home, where claimants' affidavits did not raise genuine issue of fact. (390) Agents with a search warrant seized approxi​mately 23 separately packaged quantities of co​caine from the claimants' house. They also seized $13,800 in currency. During the search the husband flushed some of the cocaine down the toilet while his wife grabbed a large bag of cocaine off the dresser and tried to conceal it under her dress. Both claimants pled guilty in state court to possession of cocaine with intent to dis​tribute. In response to the government's for​feiture complaint, the claimants denied knowl​edge of the co​caine and blamed it on their son. The 1st Circuit up​held summary judgment for the government, noting that the claimants' affi​davits did not "set forth specific facts showing that there [was] a genuine issue for trial." The court charac​terized the claimants' assertion of lack of knowledge as "ludicrous." U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Property, Etc., 900 F.2d 470 (1st Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Property, Etc., 900 F.2d 470 (1st Cir. 1990)."
1st Circuit upholds summary judgment where claimant failed to file affidavits or dispute facts. (390) The claimant filed an opposition to the govern​ment's motion for summary judg​ment but failed to file an affidavit or a state​ment of dis​puted facts. The 1st Circuit upheld the grant of summary judgment, because the claimant failed to present any facts to oppose the government motion. The court rejected counsel's argument that he was un​able to pre​pare an affidavit because the claimant was un​available. The district court waited nine months be​fore granting the government's mo​tion. The case did not need to be remanded to consider claimant's "counterclaim" for personal property in the vehicle. The forfeiture order did not extend to personal property in the vehi​cle, and if the claimant wanted it re​turned, he could seek it administratively, by a motion in the under​lying criminal case, or by an indepen​dent civil action. U.S. v. One Lot of U.S. Cur​rency, 927 F.2d 30 (1st Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. One Lot of U.S. Cur​rency, 927 F.2d 30 (1st Cir. 1991)."
2nd Circuit holds that government was required to serve and file a notice of the requirements of F.R.Civ.P. 56 to pro se litigant when it moved for summary judgment. (390) The district court granted the government’s motion for summary judgment under F.R.Civ.P. 56 and denied the pro se litigant’s Rule 41(e) motion for the return of seized property. The property included over $2 million in currency and monetary instruments forfeited in an administrative forfeiture by the United States Postal Service involving 15 Express Mail packages. The 2nd Circuit had earlier dismissed as frivolous the appeal as to 14 of the 15 Express Mail packages. As to the remaining package, the government conceded that it did not give the required Rule 56 notice to the pro se litigant as was required by the district court’s local rules. The 2nd Circuit remanded the claim regarding the remaining package for the limited purpose of allowing the government to provide appellant with the required notice and to give him the opportunity to respond to the merits of the judicial forfeiture. Ortiz-Alvear v. U.S., 2001 WL 1180623 (2nd Cir. 2001) (unpublished).

2nd Circuit reverses summary judgment for govern​ment where claimant raises material issue. (390) Claimant was convicted of drug trafficking and the government thereafter filed a civil forfeiture action against $9,380 in cash found in his residence. The district court granted summary judgment for the government. The Second Circuit found that the government had established probable cause to believe the money was the proceeds of narcotics activity based on the facts supporting the criminal conviction, including the discovery of drug ledgers from a period predating by five years the discovery of the money. However, the appellate court vacated the summary judgment because claimant produced sufficient evidence to create a material issue regarding the source of the funds. Claimant introduced a sworn affidavit claiming that the money was savings from his legitimate auto business, as well as records showing that he did produce income in that business. The court expressed no view on whether the claimant should prevail at trial; it held only that a trial on the merits must occur. U.S. v. $9,380 in United States Currency, 1999 WL 752962 (2d Cir. 1999) (unpublished).xe "U.S. v. $9,380 in United States Currency, 1999 WL 752962 (2d Cir. 1999) (unpublished)."
2nd Circuit upholds forfeiture of hotel despite innocent owner defense. (390) The district court granted summary judgment in favor of the government, ordering the forfeiture of a hotel because of narcotics activity at the hotel. The Second Circuit affirmed despite claimant's innocent owner defense. Once the government showed probable cause to believe that the property was subject to forfeiture, the burden of proof shifted to claimant to establish that the narcotics activity occurred without its knowledge or, if it had knowledge, its consent. To demonstrate lack of consent, the claimant must prove that it did all that reasonably could be expected once it learned of the activity. The only material submitted, an unsworn letter by claimant's principal owner, was an inappropriate response to the motion for summary judgment, and the factual assertions in the letter were properly disregarded. There was no evidence that claimant provided tenants with ID cards, screened visitors, secured vacant rooms, kept common areas well lit, or evicted tenants for drug activity. The hotel hired untrained guards and spent less than $3.50 a day on security. U.S. v. All Right, Title and Interest in Real Property and Appurtenances, 77 F.3d 648 (2d Cir. 1996).xe "U.S. v. All Right, Title and Interest in Real Property and Appurtenances, 77 F.3d 648 (2d Cir. 1996)."
2nd Circuit finds lawyer's affirmation as to what wit​nesses would say insufficient to preclude summary judgment for government. (390) The claimant made no averment that un​tainted proceeds were used to purchase any of the prop​erties. The 2nd Circuit found that "[h]er lawyer's affir​mation, alleging only what certain witnesses had told him they would say, is insufficient." The court found that the "detailed factual sub​stance in sup​port of her claim of ignorance" was "totally lacking." U.S. v. Aiello, 912 F.2d 4 (2d Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. Aiello, 912 F.2d 4 (2d Cir. 1990)."
2nd Circuit reverses summary judgment for determina​tion of whether claimants con​sented to drugs on prop​erty. (390) Claimants received a letter from a city coun​cilman advising them of drug activity in their leased building. Claimants contacted the councilman, who ad​vised claimants to consult an attorney. Claimants promptly consulted an attorney, who advised them that mere allegations of drug use were insuffi​cient to justify eviction. Therefore, claimants did not attempt to evict the tenants. The 2nd Circuit reversed a summary judg​ment order in favor of the government. Under the court's recent decision in U.S. v. 141st Street Corp., 911 F.2d 870 (2d Cir. 1990), mere knowledge of drug activ​ity is in​sufficient grounds for forfeiture. A claimant is entitled to an innocent owner defense by establishing either lack of knowl​edge of drug activity, or lack of con​sent to the illegal activity. The case was remanded to de​termine whether the claimants' actions constituted taking "all rea​sonable steps" to prevent the illicit use of the property. U.S. v. Certain Real Property and Premises, Known as 418 57th Street, Brooklyn New York, 922 F.2d 129 (2d Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. Certain Real Property and Premises, Known as 418 57th Street, Brooklyn New York, 922 F.2d 129 (2d Cir. 1990)."
2nd Circuit holds that illegal seizure does not bar later for​feiture action. (390) The govern​ment seized a suitcase carrying approximately $38,000 in small bills from de​fendant who pro​vided conflicting explana​tions of how he ob​tained the money and why he was car​rying it. Af​ter further investigation uncovered incrimi​nating evi​dence, the DEA initiated a forfeiture action against the money. Defendant moved for summary judgement on the grounds that the government lacked probable cause at the time of the seizure. The district court granted the motion, ordered the government to return the money and prohibited it from ini​tiating any other forfeiture action against the same prop​erty. The 2nd Circuit re​vers​ed, finding that the district court con​fused probable cause to seize the money and probable cause for the forfei​ture. Even assuming there was no probable cause for the seizure, there was no support in law for the drastic remedy of enjoining the gov​ernment from further at​tempts to forfeit the money. The court held that "an illegal seizure of property itself does not immunize that prop​erty from forfeiture . . . and that evi​dence ob​tained independent of the illegal seizure may be used in the forfeiture action." Even if there was no probable cause to seize the money, the government had established, by the time of the forfeiture ac​tion, proba​ble cause to believe that the money was for​feitable. Therefore, the burden of proof had shifted to de​fendant to establish that the money was not drug-related. U.S. v. $37,780 in United States Currency, 920 F.2d 159 (2d Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. $37,780 in United States Currency, 920 F.2d 159 (2d Cir. 1990)."
2nd Circuit upholds summary judgment against "innocent spouse." (390) The govern​ment sought to for​feit a single family home owned by the claimant and her husband, based upon the husband's drug trafficking. In her claim, the claimant denied any knowledge of her husband's drug traf​ficking activity. In the course of a deposition, however, she in​voked her 5th Amendment privilege against self incrimina​tion in response to virtu​ally every question re​garding drug activities alleged to have taken place in her home. The district court granted summary judgment for the gov​ernment, stating that there was "simply no pro​bative evi​dence from which a reasonable jury could find for the claimant, given the co​caine found throughout the house, the gun and other drug paraphernalia found throughout the house, the statements of the credible informant that the claimant was fully aware of her hus​band's drug trafficking, and the claimant's own calm response to the search of her home and the seizure of the aforementioned contra​band." The 2nd Circuit affirmed the judge's ruling, stat​ing that there was no "genuine issue for trial."  U.S. v. One Parcel of Prop​erty located at 15 Black Ledge Drive, Marlborough, Conn., 897 F.2d 97 (2d Cir. 1990). xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Prop​erty located at 15 Black Ledge Drive, Marlborough, Conn., 897 F.2d 97 (2d Cir. 1990). "
3rd Circuit finds claimant's bare denial of knowledge sufficient to withstand sum​mary judgment. (390) One claimant and her husband owned a residence and a food mar​ket as tenants by the entireties. The husband also owned a club in which a second claimant had an interest by virtue of his contribution to the down payment. In a forfeiture action against the three properties based on the husband's drug dealings, claimants asserted the innocent owner defense. The 3rd Circuit held that the claimants' bare denial of knowl​edge was sufficient to create a genuine issue of fact and thus summary judgment was in​appropriate. A rational jury could believe the second claimant's testimony that he had no knowledge of the husband's drug dealings at the club. Similarly, a rational jury could be​lieve the wife's testimony that she had no knowledge of her husband's drug dealing from their house or market. No evidence was tendered placing the wife at her residence or at the scene of any drug-related transaction. Judge Seitz concurred and dissented. U.S. v. Premises Known as 717 South Woodward Street, 2 F.3d 529 (3d Cir. 1993). xe "U.S. v. Premises Known as 717 South Woodward Street, 2 F.3d 529 (3d Cir. 1993). "
4th Circuit reverses summary judgment where claimants denied knowledge of CTR requirement. (390) Claimants, husband and wife, owned a nightclub. They also made dozens of cash deposits at multiple branches of banks at times and in ways suggesting an attempt to avoid the requirement of filing a currency transaction report (CTR). The government sought forfeiture of the house purchased with the funds derived from these deposits on the ground that the house was bought with the proceeds of a structuring transaction. The district court granted summary judgment for the government, finding that it had established probable cause and the claimants had failed to rebut that showing. The Fourth Circuit reversed. It did not dispute the government’s showing of probable cause. However, the court emphasized that proof of knowledge of the reporting requirement is essential to proof of the crime of structuring, and thus to the forfeitability of structured funds, and that both claimants took the stand and denied knowledge. Despite the trial court’s conclusion that claimants’ denial was “incredible,” the circuit court felt that determination of claimant’s credibility on the issue was a jury question. U.S. v. Leak, 123 F.3d 787 (4th Cir. 1997).

xe "U.S. v. Leak, 123 F.3d 787 (4th Cir. 1997)."
4th Circuit reverses summary judgment that prop​erty was related to criminal activ​ity. (390) After claimant's conviction for un​lawfully pre​scribing drugs, the government sought to forfeit his property as proceeds of claimant's illegal activity. The district court granted summary judgment in fa​vor of the gov​ernment, but the 4th Circuit reversed, finding no showing of a substantial connec​tion between the property and claimant's criminal activity. Though the government had asserted that claimant's sole source of income was his tainted medical practice, that ex​planation did not connect claimant's crimes to prop​erty that he acquired before his crimi​nal activity. Even re​garding other property, the court found the govern​ment's "conclusory allegation" inadequate to support summary judgment in the absence of any in​dication of the "source or the basis" for the informa​tion. U.S. v. Borromeo, 995 F.2d 23 (4th Cir. 1993), added to in part and vacated in part, 1 F.3d 219 (4th Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. Borromeo, 995 F.2d 23 (4th Cir. 1993), added to in part and vacated in part, 1 F.3d 219 (4th Cir. 1993)."
4th Circuit affirms summary judgment where claimants ad​mitted they were aware of currency re​porting re​quirements. (390) Claimants appealed the district court's grant of sum​mary judgment for the gov​ernment in a civil forfeiture ac​tion. The district court de​termined as a matter of law that claimants intention​ally structured a series of currency de​posits into their bank account for the pur​pose of evading federal re​porting require​ments. The 4th Circuit af​firmed the sum​mary judgment. Even if claimants were un​aware that structuring itself was illegal, the only scienter re​quirement is that the violating party have knowledge of the reporting re​quirements and act to avoid them. Here, claimants con​ceded that a bank teller told them of the re​porting require​ments. Their belief that the re​quirements were permissive, rather than mandatory, was belied by the convoluted course of their deposit transac​tions. It was in​conceivable that they believed the requirements were of no more impor​tance than that. U.S. v. Wollman, 945 F.2d 79 (4th Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. Wollman, 945 F.2d 79 (4th Cir. 1991)."
5th Circuit sustains summary judgment for government, ruling that later acquittal of some defendants did not undermine prob​able cause for forfeit​ure. (390) Six individuals were investigated in connection with structuring car pur​chases to evade currency reporting require​ments. Three were eventually convicted, two acquit​ted, and one never indicted. The govern​ment initiated a forfei​ture action against the cars. The 5th Circuit upheld summary judgment in favor of the government. The government presented bank records, documen​tation from various car dealerships, and evidence of the other claimants' convictions for structuring the transactions to show probable cause for the forfei​ture. Given the quality and quantity of this evidence, the subsequent acquittal of two of the claimants did not undermine the probable cause finding. The mere pendency of the appeals of the three convicted claimants were insufficient to cast doubt on the exis​tence of probable cause. U.S. v. 1988 Oldsmobile Cutlass Supreme 2 Door, 983 F.2d 670 (5th Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. 1988 Oldsmobile Cutlass Supreme 2 Door, 983 F.2d 670 (5th Cir. 1993)."
5th Circuit holds government established probable cause that defendant sold drugs from home. (390) The 5th Circuit upheld the district court's determination that the govern​ment had shown probable cause that claimant distributed illegal drugs to a government in​formant. Tapes of the conversation between claimant and the government informant were diffi​cult to understand, but clear enough to support the govern​ment's contention that de​fendant sold the drugs to the in​formant. The government submitted affidavits from two FBI agents who monitored the conversations and swore that the in​formant left claimant's house with the drugs given to him by claimant. Lab tests confirmed that the sub​stances the in​formant gave the FBI agents were illegal nar​cotics. Defen​dant's affidavit denying the gov​ernment's alle​gation was in​sufficient to rebut the government's evi​dence. Claimant pro​vided no facts that would support his con​tention, and did not offer any interpretation of the tapes that would contradict the government's version of the facts. U.S. v. Lot 9, Block 2 of Donny​brook Place, Harris County, Texas, 919 F.2d 994 (5th Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. Lot 9, Block 2 of Donny​brook Place, Harris County, Texas, 919 F.2d 994 (5th Cir. 1990)."
6th Circuit affirms summary judgment to government of rifle not registered to claimant. (390) Claimant possessed an M-14 rifle, classified by the ATF as a machine gun. The ATF seized the rifle for forfeiture after it determined that the claimant had not registered the gun as required by federal statute. The government moved for summary judgment. The district court concluded that the government had established probable cause that the claimant possessed an unregistered machine gun and that he had not carried his burden of showing that his possession of the weapon was legal. The government’s motion for summary judgment was granted. The 6th Circuit found unavailing the claimant’s argument that he had altered the rifle’s capacity to prevent it from being fired in full-automatic mode. That assertion, the 6th Circuit found, did not refute ATF’s finding that the rifle qualified as a machine gun because it retained features specific to the M-14 and could have been readily restored to fire automatically. Affirmed. U.S. v. One Harrington and Richardson Rifle, Model M-14, 2004 WL 1303236 (6th Cir., June 9, 2004).

6th Circuit affirms nuisance abatement and related civil forfeitures of vehicles. (390) Plaintiffs’ vehicles were impounded for lewdness violations under Michigan’s “nuisance abatement” statute, and subsequent civil forfeiture actions were filed. The proceedings were variously resolved after either payment of civil fines and fees, forfeiture of the vehicle, or dismissal of the action. Plaintiffs then sued the prosecutor and other public officials, alleging unconstitutional application of Michigan’s nuisance abatement law against them by impounding, and threatening to affect the civil forfeiture of their cars absent payment of civil fines and fees. The district court granted defendants’ summary judgment and dismissed the plaintiffs’ civil actions. The 6th Circuit analyzed in detail the Bennis v. Michigan Supreme Court decision that sustained the Michigan public nuisance abatement statute over constitutional due process and taking-of-property challenges. Although the facts of the instant case were somewhat different from Bennis, the 6th Circuit found that the trial court did not abuse its discretion by resolving the summary judgment motion prior to discovery. The 6th Circuit also held that the trial court did not legally err when it awarded summary judgment to each defendant on every cause of action of the Amended Complaint. Affirmed. Ross v. Duggan, 2004 WL 1152151 (6th Cir., May 19, 2004).

6th Circuit reverses summary judgment for government, finds tip and dog's reaction to money did not show connection between money and drugs. (390) An anonymous caller advised authorities that a drug courier was traveling on a certain plane from New York to Cleveland. Police determined that claimant most closely met the description, and seized $5,000 from him, and $9,750 from a bag carried by claimant's companion. A narcotics dog later reacted positively to the money. The 6th Circuit reversed a summary judgment in favor of the government, holding that anonymous tip and the dog's reaction did not show a connection between the money and drugs. The anonymous tip described the courier as a sole black man, five feet 10 inches tall, wearing glasses and a suit, carrying both an attaché case and illegal drugs. Claimant was six feet four inches tall, carried no luggage or drugs, and traveled with a companion. The value of the dog's reaction was minimal, given the high percentage of currency that has drug residue. The modest amount of money carried by claimant was insufficient to justify more than a suspicion of illegal activity. The fact that claimant lied about the purpose of his trip, and had pled guilty to state drug charges more than six years earlier, also did not establish probable cause. U.S. v. $5,000 in U.S. Currency and $9,750 in U.S. Currency, 40 F.3d 846 (6th Cir. 1994).xe "U.S. v. $5,000 in U.S. Currency and $9,750 in U.S. Currency, 40 F.3d 846 (6th Cir. 1994)."
6th Circuit holds criminal conviction in​adequate to justify summary judgment of cash. (390) Claimant was convicted of drug offenses, and the government sought civil for​feiture of cash found in claimant's home. The district court granted sum​mary judgment to the government, but the 6th Circuit reversed. Although the money was introduced as evi​dence in claimant's criminal trial, a finding that the money was proceeds or facilitating property was not "necessary and essential to the [criminal] judgment." Claimant's testi​mony in the criminal trial that the money represented a settlement from a black-lung claim created a genuine issue of material fact pre​cluding summary judgment. U.S. v. Three Tracts of Property Lo​cated on Beaver Creek, 994 F.2d 287 (6th Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. Three Tracts of Property Lo​cated on Beaver Creek, 994 F.2d 287 (6th Cir. 1993)."
6th Circuit reverses summary judgment against spouse who denied knowledge of drugs in home. (390) Claimant's husband was convicted of drug of​fenses, and claimant was tried but acquitted. Subse​quently, the government sought to forfeit the family's mo​bile home and the tract on which it sat, as well as other property owned by the family. The district court granted summary judgment to the government, but the 6th Circuit re​versed with respect to claimant's interest in the parcel. The only evidence tying drug ac​tivity to the home was proof that a bag of marijuana and a jar containing several thou​sand marijuana seeds were found in the mo​bile home. At her crimi​nal trial and in an af​fidavit in the forfeiture action, claimant de​nied knowing that these items were in her home. A reasonable trier of fact could have con​cluded that claimant satisfied the inno​cent-owner defense. U.S. v. Three Tracts of Property Lo​cated on Beaver Creek, 994 F.2d 287 (6th Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. Three Tracts of Property Lo​cated on Beaver Creek, 994 F.2d 287 (6th Cir. 1993)."
6th Circuit precludes appeal of summary judgment by claimant who had not denied knowledge under oath. (390) Claimant ap​pealed the district court's summary judgment of forfeitability, arguing that the court im​properly held that he was collaterally estopped from denying forfeitability because of his criminal conviction. The 6th Circuit af​firmed, hold​ing that claimant's failure to tes​tify at his criminal trial or otherwise to deny under oath that he knew of the drug activity on his property pre​cluded his ap​peal. U.S. v. Three Tracts of Property Lo​cated on Beaver Creek, 994 F.2d 287 (6th Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. Three Tracts of Property Lo​cated on Beaver Creek, 994 F.2d 287 (6th Cir. 1993)."
6th Circuit remands case to determine whether amendment would cure claimant's standing prob​lem. (390) Shortly after the gov​ernment filed its forfeiture action against the claimants' home, a claim contesting the forfei​ture was filed by one claimant and an individ​ual who purported to be the legal guardian of the other claimant. The claim was not prop​erly verified and the individual was not the other claimant's legal guardian. Approximately three months after the claim was filed, the claimant granted a durable power of attorney to the individual. The government moved to strike the claim and answer of claimants and for entry of a default or summary judgment. The claimants failed to file a re​sponse, and in​stead made an oral motion to amend the claim. Since claimants failed to respond to the govern​ment's motion, the district court granted the govern​ment's motion to strike and for de​fault. The 6th Circuit re​manded, finding that prior to denying the motion to amend, the dis​trict court should have made a determi​nation as to whether the gov​ernment would have been prejudiced by the amendment. The court noted that even if an amendment were per​missible, summary judg​ment in favor of the gov​ernment might still be ap​propriate in light of the weakness of claimant's innocent owner defense. Judge Nelson dissented. U.S. v. $267,961.07, 916 F.2d 1104 (6th Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. $267,961.07, 916 F.2d 1104 (6th Cir. 1990)."
6th Circuit finds claimant with bare legal title has no standing to con​test forfeiture of prop​erty. (390) A drug defendant put title to his home in his daugh​ter's name. The daughter filed a claim to the property after the gov​ernment insti​tuted for​feiture proceedings. The daughter never lived at the home, nor was there evidence that she was ever pre​sent at the closing of the sale. The Sixth Circuit affirmed the summary judgment for the govern​ment holding that evi​dence of bare legal title, in the ab​sence of dominion, control or other indicia of ownership, is insuffi​cient to establish stand​ing to contest the for​feiture. Summary judg​ment for the govern​ment was proper because the claim​ant had failed to sustain her burden of proving an in​terest in the property. To allow standing solely on the basis of legal title would foster manipu​lation of nominal ownership in order to defeat the policy behind forfeit​ures. U.S. v. Premises Known as 526 Liscom Drive, 866 F.2d 213 (6th Cir. 1989).xe "U.S. v. Premises Known as 526 Liscom Drive, 866 F.2d 213 (6th Cir. 1989)."
6th Circuit holds forfeiture of property by summary judgment when claim​ant asserted innocent owner de​fense in her veri​fied claim. (390) The wife of an indicted drug con​spirator filed a verified claim and answer to the govern​ment's forfei​ture complaint asserting that she was the in​nocent owner of a one-half undivided interest in the for​feitable property. The parties filed cross-motions for summary judgment, but neither side ad​dressed the inno​cent owner de​fense. The 6th Circuit held that summary judgment in favor of the gov​ernment was im​proper be​cause it merely established probable cause to forfeit the property. There was no resolution of the wife's innocent owner de​fense. Therefore, the wife was entitled to a trial in which she would have the opportu​nity to establish that she was truly an innocent owner. U.S. v. Lots 12, 13, 14, and 15, etc., 869 F.2d 942 (6th Cir. 1989). xe "U.S. v. Lots 12, 13, 14, and 15, etc., 869 F.2d 942 (6th Cir. 1989). "
6th Circuit holds summary judgment forfeiti​ng vehicle im​proper in alien case. (390) Claim​ants' auto​mobile was forfeited after an INS agent discov​ered undocumented Salvador​ans in the car. The district court ordered the vehicle forfeited un​der 8 U.S.C §1324 (b)(1). The 6th Circuit re​versed, and held that the pur​pose of the claimant's transportation from Texas to Ken​tucky was not to sup​port their illegal pres​ence, even though that may have been the ul​timate effect of their actions. Thus, the vehi​cle did not transport aliens, "in furtherance of vio​lation of law" (i.e. illegal entry). Inter​preting the meaning of the "furtherance" clause, the court chose an "intent" test over an "effects" test. Because the government had failed to prove the claimant's intent was to aid the illegal presence of the aliens, summary judg​ment was im​proper. U.S. v. 1982 Ford Pick-up, 873 F.2d 947 (6th Cir. 1989).xe "U.S. v. 1982 Ford Pick-up, 873 F.2d 947 (6th Cir. 1989)."
6th Circuit holds that intent to use property to commit offense is proper grounds for for​feiture even if offense is never com​pleted. (390) 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(7) permits forfei​ture of all real property intended to be used to commit a drug of​fense. A claimant who was later indicted on drug traf​ficking charges claimed that forfeiture of his property was improper because no transaction was con​summated when he met with two un​dercover agents on his property. The 6th Cir​cuit held that summary judg​ment in favor of the gov​ernment was proper. Once the gov​ernment es​tablish​ed probable cause to believe the prop​erty was for​feitable, the burden shifted to the claimant to estab​lish a material question of fact as to his intent. Since he failed to do so, the prop​erty was forfeitable under the lan​guage of the statute. U.S. v. Lots 12, 13, 14, and 15, etc., 869 F.2d 942 (6th Cir. 1989).xe "U.S. v. Lots 12, 13, 14, and 15, etc., 869 F.2d 942 (6th Cir. 1989)."
7th Circuit holds excessiveness claim waived if not raised in response to summary judgment motion. (390) The government commenced civil in rem forfeiture proceedings against claimants’ farm after marijuana and weapons were found on the premises, and successfully moved for summary judgment. After the government’s motion was granted, claimants raised for the first time the claim that forfeiture of the farm violated the Excessive Fines Clause of the Eighth Amendment. Noting that the purpose of a summary judgment motion is to determine all issues as to which there are no disputed questions of material fact, the Seventh Circuit ruled that if claimants believed there were disputed issues regarding constitutional excessiveness, those issues should have been raised in response to the summary judgment motion. Because the issue was not raised, it was waived. U.S. v. 47 West 644 Route 38, 190 F.3d 781 (7th Cir. 1999).xe "U.S. v. 47 West 644 Route 38, 190 F.3d 781 (7th Cir. 1999)."
Eighth Circuit reverses summary judgment forfeiting Hell’s Angels clubhouse because overall credibility of the government's witnesses was placed squarely at issue. (390) The United States sought civil forfeiture of real property in Minneapolis that served as the clubhouse for the Minnesota chapter of the Hell's Angels Motorcycle Club since 1995, alleging it was used to facilitate the commission of drug offenses. The property's record owner, the Minnesota Church of Angels, is a non-profit organization formed by the Club's organizers to buy and hold clubhouse property, and filed a claim asserting its ownership interest and contesting the government's right to forfeit the property. The district court granted the government's motion for summary judgment, and the Church appealed. The government had produced cooperating witnesses, among others, who testified that substantial quantities of methamphetamine were frequently delivered to members at the clubhouse, that drugs were routinely used by members during parties at the clubhouse, that workmen who engaged in the 1995 remodeling of the clubhouse were often paid, at least in part, with methamphetamine, that members' drug trafficking was discussed at the clubhouse on a monthly basis and that drugs were constantly present and used at the clubhouse. Also, in a 2001 warrant search of the clubhouse, police found .75 grams of methamphetamine sitting on a table in front of one member. The court held that it had no doubt that this evidence, if credited by the finder of fact, would satisfy the government's burden to prove a “substantial connection” between the Church's clubhouse property and violations of the federal drug laws. Under prior law, the Court noted, the government needed only to show probable cause to believe that property was subject to forfeiture to shift the burden of proof on this issue to the claimant, and that “[i]n this forfeiture-friendly environment, summary judgment in favor of the government was not uncommon. But, the Court further held, the summary judgment inquiry depends on “the substantive evidentiary standard of proof that would apply at the trial on the merits.” Once the movant has supported his or her motion, the opponent may not simply rest on the hope of discrediting the movant's evidence at trial, and a principal purpose of summary judgment is to isolate and dispose of factually unsupported claims or defenses. CAFRA did not modify this summary judgment principle. Here, the government's summary judgment evidence did not go unrefuted. The Church submitted deposition testimony of Club members that they never saw drugs used or exchanged at the clubhouse at any time, and an affidavit that tended to impeach the testimony of one of the government’s witnesses. The Court held that when the party with the burden of proof moves for summary judgment and the opposing party presents evidence contesting the veracity of the movant's evidence, if the testimony of a witness (as opposed to documentary evidence) is necessary to carry the movant's burden of proof, the Court must look carefully at whether the witness is unbiased and competent, and whether his testimony is “positive, internally consistent, unequivocal, and in full accord with the documentary exhibits.” If the movant makes this showing, then the opposing party cannot force a trial merely to cross-examine the witness or in the hope that something might turn up at the trial. But where specific facts are alleged that if proven would call the credibility of the moving party's witness into doubt, summary judgment is improper, especially when the challenged testimony is an essential element of the plaintiff's case. There, the Church's evidence put the overall credibility of the government's witnesses squarely at issue, and were not minor inconsistencies, but direct contradictions on points materially related to the government's proof of a substantial connection. Finally, as to the .75 grams seized from one member at the Club, many legitimate non-profit institutions own real property, and it is not unrealistic to posit an institutional owner's otherwise innocent premises being used for illicit drug trafficking by agents misusing their right of access and authority, and “CAFRA should be construed in a manner that protects such institutions from unwarranted or disproportionate forfeitures.” Thus, the summary judgment was reversed. U.S. v. Real Property Located at 3234 Washington Ave., 2007 WL 846641 (8th Cir. 2007) (March 22, 2007).

9th Circuit says inadmissible evidence cannot defeat summary judgment. (390) The district court granted the government’s motion for summary judgment in this civil forfeiture case. The Ninth Circuit agreed that the government had established probable cause to believe the forfeited money and vehicle were related to an illegal drug transaction. The court cited “substantial amount of currency seized, the temporal proximity of the exchange of cocaine and the seizure of the defendant currency, and the approximate equivalent value of the two items [the drugs and money].” Claimant failed to rebut the government’s showing. He presented unauthenticated and inadmissible documents purporting to show a legitimate source for the property, but inadmissible evidence will not defeat a motion for summary judgment. U.S. v. $379,535.00 U.S. Currency, 2000 WL 60139 (9th Cir. 2000) (unpublished).xe "U.S. v. $379,535.00 U.S. Currency, 2000 WL 60139 (9th Cir. 2000) (unpublished)."
9th Circuit says dismissal for lack of jurisdiction over res precludes adjudication of merits. (390) The government sought civil forfeiture of a debt owed by Tishgart to Zybach. Several years into the litigation, the district court concluded that the government had failed to properly seize the res (the debt), and thus that it lacked jurisdiction. The Ninth Circuit held that dismissal of the action against the debt for want of jurisdiction precluded the district court from adjudicating the competing claims of Tishgart and Zybach to the money. Likewise, because the dismissal did not constitute a final adjudication on the merits, Zybach’s request for attorney’s fees under the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. §2412(d)(1)(B), was premature. U.S. v. 3 Parcels in LaPlata County, 185 F.3d 871 (9th Cir. 1999) (table) (unpublished).xe "U.S. v. 3 Parcels in LaPlata County, 185 F.3d 871 (9th Cir. 1999) (table) (unpublished)."
9th Circuit says claimant’s failure to respond to government motion does not merit summary judgment. (390) In this forfeiture case arising from currency reporting violations, claimant moved for judgment on the pleadings and the government responded with an opposition and a cross-motion for summary judgment. Claimant failed to respond to the cross-motion, and pursuant to local rule, the district court entered judgment for the government. The Ninth Circuit held that such a procedural default did not meet the standards set out in Rule 56, Fed. R. Civ. P., for the granting of summary judgment motions. The order granting summary judgment on this basis was therefore improper. U.S. v. $273,969.04 U.S. Currency, 164 F.3d 462 (9th Cir. 1999).xe "U.S. v. $273,969.04 U.S. Currency, 164 F.3d 462 (9th Cir. 1999)."
9th Circuit says wife's claim that she had no knowledge of transactions supported inno​cent owner defense. (390) The wife, a co-owner of the residential property, claimed that she had no knowledge of the expeditions to the five banks or that cashier's checks were used in the real estate transactions until a lawyer informed her of this later. The government did not refute the claim, and therefore there was a genuine question as to whether she knew about the illegal transactions. This was enough to come within the statutory innocent owner defense in 18 U.S.C. §981(a)(2). Thus it was error to grant summary judgment against the wife. U.S. v. Real Property 874 Gartel Drive, Walnut, California, 79 F.3d 918 (9th Cir. 1996).xe "U.S. v. Real Property 874 Gartel Drive, Walnut, California, 79 F.3d 918 (9th Cir. 1996)."
9th Circuit affirms summary judgment against government; finds drug residue on currency insufficient for probable cause. (390) The large quantity of currency was contaminated with narcotics residue and was packaged, and the owner of the money gave false accounts of the its source and his own employment record. Nevertheless, Judges Tang, Noonan and Preg​erson held that this was insufficient to furnish probable cause that the money was connected to drugs, as required for civil asset forfeiture under 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(6). There​fore the summary judgment against the government was affirmed. U.S. v. U.S. Currency, $30,060.00, 39 F.3d 1039 (9th Cir. 1994).xe "U.S. v. U.S. Currency, $30,060.00, 39 F.3d 1039 (9th Cir. 1994)."
9th Circuit reverses summary judgment where affidavits raised factual question. (390) The United States moved to forfeit two tracts of land and various automobiles be​longing to the claimant. The district court granted summary judgment as to all property except three vehicles and the claimant ap​pealed. The Ninth Circuit reversed, ruling that the claimant's affidavits raised material issues of fact regarding the source of the money used to purchase the property. While the district court's conclusion that some of the affidavits lacked credibility was under​standable for a trier of fact, it was pre​mature to reach the conclusion when the witnesses had not been heard in person. If the claimant and the supporting witnesses are willing to take the witness stand and under the penalty of perjury give testimony consistent with the affidavits, they are entitled to do so. The dis​trict court is not precluded by the earlier ruling on summary judgment from deciding whether or not the claimant has established innocent sources by a preponderance of the evidence. U.S. v. Two Tracts of Land, 5 F.3d 1360 (9th Cir. 1993). xe "U.S. v. Two Tracts of Land, 5 F.3d 1360 (9th Cir. 1993). "
9th Circuit rules claimant's self-serving but detailed affi​davit sufficient to defeat sum​mary judgment. (390) In mov​ing for summary judg​ment, the government pre​sented suffi​cient evi​dence to establish probable cause to believe that claimant's home was used in a drug transac​tion and was therefore subject to for​feiture. Contra​dicting the written statement of a person who claimed to have purchased co​caine from claimant inside claimant's home, claimant op​posed the government's motion for summary judgment in an affidavit claiming that his home had not been used in any drug transac​tion, that the drugs he sold had been stored in his car, and that he had specifically told persons to whom he sold cocaine that they should not come to his house. A search of claimant's house had revealed no drugs. In light of the detail in claimant's affidavit, Judges Kozin​ski, Brown​ing, and Alarcon reversed the district court's summary judg​ment in favor of the government, ruling that a reason​able finder of fact could conclude by a pre​ponderance of the evidence that claimant's home had not been used in drug transactions. The court re​jected the govern​ment's argument that a differ​ent standard applied in the forfei​ture context than in a nor​mal civil proceeding. U.S. v. 1 Parcel of Real Property, Lot 4, Block 5 of Eaton Acres, 904 F.2d 487 (9th Cir. 1990). xe "U.S. v. 1 Parcel of Real Property, Lot 4, Block 5 of Eaton Acres, 904 F.2d 487 (9th Cir. 1990). "
9th Circuit explains proper procedure to re​cover seized property. (390) If property has been seized without for​feiture or criminal pro​ceedings being filed, an aggrieved person may file a motion under 41(e), Fed. R. Crim. P. to re​cover the property and suppress the evidence. This may trigger the filing of a civil forfeiture complaint. Once the civil forfeiture proceeding is filed, the Rule 41 proceeding must be dis​missed because Federal Rule of Criminal Pro​cedure 54(b)(5) expressly provides that the Criminal Rules are not applicable to civil for​feitures. At that point, however, "summary judgment is an available and appropriate pre​trial remedy to challenge the legality of a seizure under the Fourth Amendment in a civil for​feiture pro​ceeding." U.S. v. U.S. Currency, $83,310.78, 851 F.2d 1231 (9th Cir. 1988).xe "U.S. v. U.S. Currency, $83,310.78, 851 F.2d 1231 (9th Cir. 1988)."
9th Circuit affirms summary judgment for government, holding that private investigator was not "innocent owner" of heroin dealer's Ferrari. (390) The Ferrari was clearly forfeit​able prop​erty, traceable to ille​gal heroin activi​ties. The burden is on the claimant to establish a lack of knowledge of the for​feitable nature of the property. Here, the claimant was a private investi​gator who lived with the heroin dealer's lawyer. He had assisted in the preparation of the defense to the heroin and homicide charges, and at one point in the defense of those cases, had gone to Los Ange​les to pick up the Fer​rari and drive it to the San Francisco area. He had in​sured the car in the heroin dealer's name. The district court properly granted summary judgment for the govern​ment. U.S. v. 1980 Red Ferrari, 827 F.2d 477 (9th Cir. 1987).xe "U.S. v. 1980 Red Ferrari, 827 F.2d 477 (9th Cir. 1987)."
10th Circuit finds probable cause based on unexplained wealth. (390) The government filed a civil forfeiture action against cash and money in bank accounts of a convicted drug dealer. The Tenth Circuit held that the probable cause for the forfeiture was established by proof of claimant’s drug activities coupled with proof that he lacked any source of legitimate income sufficient to account for the amount of money and assets he possessed. Claimant failed to rebut the government’s showing of probable cause, and therefore summary judgment for the government was upheld. U.S. v. $11,557.22 in U.S. Currency, 198 F.3d 260 (10th Cir. 1999) (table)(unpublished).xe "U.S. v. $11,557.22 in U.S. Currency, 198 F.3d 260 (10th Cir. 1999) (table)(unpublished)."
10th Circuit requires more than conclusory allega​tions to defeat summary judgment. (390) Claimant was convicted of counter​feiting checks. The government sought civil forfeiture of the computer equipment used to print the phony checks, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §492, and the district court granted summary judgment for the government. The Tenth Circuit found that the claimant’s plea of guilty in the criminal case, the affidavit of an investigating Secret Service agent, and copies of counter​feit checks printed by government agents using the seized equipment were sufficient to establish probable cause. Claimant failed to rebut the govern​ment’s showing. He introduced no evidence other than a letter from his wife to the Secret Service, which he alleged established that she had given conflicting statements regarding his use of the equipment. The agent’s affidavit refuted claimant’s claims of inconsistency and his other conclusory allegations were insufficient to stave off summary judgment. U.S. v. Mustek Paragon 600 Pro Flat-Bed Scanner S# B14009467, 162 F.3d 1175 (10th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished).xe "U.S. v. Mustek Paragon 600 Pro Flat-Bed Scanner S# B14009467, 162 F.3d 1175 (10th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished)."
10th Circuit says genuine issue of fact existed as to wife’s knowledge of husband's illegal activity. (390) Police found cocaine, cash and drug paraphernalia at claimant's home and on business property claimant jointly owned with her husband. Claimant raised an innocent owner defense, but the district court granted summary judgment in favor of the government. The Tenth Circuit reversed, finding a genuine issue as to how much claimant knew about the illegal activity. Claimant's affidavit plausibly character​ized her husband's drug dealing as an outgrowth of his covert infidelity. Also, claimant's innocence was supported by her husband's trial testimony, which was proffered by the government itself in its motion for summary judgment. Claimant's affidavit also claimed that the money was the proceeds from the sale of a jointly owned van, and that she alone used the money. The affidavit did not merely contain assertions of innocence, but a facially plausible account to support her claim. The fact that claimant's husband knew of the money and had access to it was not enough to defeat the innocent owner defense. U.S. v. 9844 South Titan Court, Unit 9, Littleton, Colorado, 75 F.3d 1470 (10th Cir. 1996).xe "U.S. v. 9844 South Titan Court, Unit 9, Littleton, Colorado, 75 F.3d 1470 (10th Cir. 1996)."
11th Circuit holds that summary judgment cannot be based on mere fact that motion was unopposed. (390) Police officers arrested claimant at his house after telling him they were investigating a marijuana tip. They gave him a consent-to-search form and Miranda rights form. He began to check the ‘no’ box on the Miranda form, and the police explained the rights more thoroughly. The officer checked the ‘yes’ box to waive his Miranda rights and claimant initialed above each checkmark, signed the form, and signed the consent-to-search form. The search of his house yielded 84 live marijuana plants, growing equipment, and $45,000 in cash. During the search, claimant made several incriminating remarks. He later claimed he had not voluntarily consented to the search of his house, and said he only signed the consent-to-search form because the police told him that he would be forced to wait outside until the police obtained a warrant. He also claimed the police refused to allow him to speak to a lawyer and would arrest his girlfriend after they got a warrant. A civil forfeiture action was filed against the residence. He then filed a motion to suppress the evidence seized during the search and to suppress the statements he made during the search. The government filed a motion for summary judgment against the real property, and claimant never responded to that motion. The district court granted summary judgment and denied his suppression motion as moot. The 11th Circuit held that there was a genuine issue of material fact as to whether the search of his house was legal, which made summary judgment inappropriate. Deposition testimony suggested that the circumstances under which he consented to the search may have been coercive. Reversed and remanded. U.S. v. One Piece of Real Property Located at 5800 SW 74th Avenue, Miami, Florida, 2004 WL 575094 (11th Cir., Mar. 24, 2004).

11th Circuit says large amount of cur​rency, by itself, was not probable cause for forfeiture, but affirms summary judgment for government. (390) DEA agents seized $121,000 in cash from claimant as he was at​tempting to board an airplane. The district court held that a large amount of seized cur​rency alone was sufficient to establish proba​ble cause for the forfeiture of the money. The 11th Circuit rejected this conclusion, holding that a large amount of currency, by itself, is insufficient to establish probable cause for forfeiture under 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(6). How​ever, summary judg​ment in favor of the gov​ernment was affirmed, since under the total​ity of the circumstances, probable cause ex​isted for the forfeiture. The manner in which defendant purchased his airline ticket and the nature of his travel itinerary made it un​likely that he was travelling on either busi​ness or vacation. When questioned by DEA agents, defendant appeared quite nervous. Finally, defendant had a history of narcotics arrests and convictions. U.S. v. $121,100.00 in United States Currency, 999 F.2d 1503 (11th Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. $121,100.00 in United States Currency, 999 F.2d 1503 (11th Cir. 1993)."
11th Circuit holds that failure to respond to re​quests for admissions in civil forfei​ture action es​tablished that claimant used the property to facili​tate drug transac​tions. (390) Claimant was con​victed of drug charges in state court based in part upon wiretap evidence which the state court re​fused to suppress. In a subsequent federal civil forfeiture action brought against prop​erty owned by claimant, the government moved for summary judgment after claimant failed to respond to the government's re​quests for admissions. Claimant contended that the district court could not entertain the government's motion until it held a hearing regarding the wiretap evidence. The district court granted summary judg​ment because (a) claimant did not challenge the facts the gov​ernment presented, and (b) claimant was col​laterally estopped from raising the lawfulness of the wiretap. The state supreme court then granted cer​tiorari to consider the state court's resolution of the suppression issue. The 11th Circuit upheld the summary judgment in the forfeiture action, finding that the state court's resolution of the wiretap issue was not necessary. Claimant's failure to respond to the government's requests for admissions conclu​sively established that he had used the property to facilitate drug transactions. Fed. R. Civ. P. 36 ex​pressly provides that requests for admissions are au​tomatically deemed admitted if not answered within 30 days and the matters therein are "conclusively es​tablished" unless the court permits with​drawal or amendment of the admissions. Even if the wiretap was invalid, the summary judgment would stand, since the order was not based on the "fruit" of any "poisonous tree" but rather on defendant's own ad​missions. U.S. v. 2204 Barbara Lane, 960 F.2d 126 (11th Cir. 1992)xe "U.S. v. 2204 Barbara Lane, 960 F.2d 126 (11th Cir. 1992)".xe "U.S. v. 2204 Barbara Lane, 960 F.2d 126 (11th Cir. 1992)."
11th Circuit rules genuine issue of mate​rial fact ex​isted as to whether government provid​ed adequate notice of forfei​ture. (390) The district court granted summary judgment in favor of claimant on the basis of the govern​ment's violation of several statutory proce​dures, including the failure to provide adequate notice by publication. The 11th Circuit ruled that summary judgment was inappropri​ate because genuine issues of ma​terial fact existed as to the several matters, including whether adequate notice had been made. Contrary to the dis​trict court's assumption, the Supplemental Rules for Cer​tain Admiralty and Mar​itime Claims do not apply to gambling for​feitures. The cus​toms laws apply, and require that the gov​ernment publish notice of the seizure and the intent to forfeit for at least three weeks. The record showed that the marshals ar​ranged for the appropriate publica​tion, but there was no evidence that the notice was actually pub​lished. Thus, there was a gen​uine issue of material fact as to whether the govern​ment published adequate notice. U.S. v. Premises Lo​cated at Route 13, Kilburn Beach, 946 F.2d 749 (11th Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. Premises Lo​cated at Route 13, Kilburn Beach, 946 F.2d 749 (11th Cir. 1991)."
11th Circuit, en banc, outlines procedure for assess​ing summary judgment motion in forfeiture action. (390) The 11th Circuit, en banc, outlined the proce​dure a court must follow in evaluating a claimant's mo​tion for summary judg​ment. The court must initially determine whether, as a matter of law, the government has shown probable cause. If not, the court should grant summary judg​ment for the claimant. If the gov​ernment has established probable cause, the claimant may still be entitled to summary judg​ment if he shows the absence of a triable issue of fact on the issues on which he has the burden of proof: that is, taking all of the evidence in the light most favorable to the govern​ment, no reasonable jury could award the property to the government. If the claimant fails to make such an affirma​tive showing, the court should deny claimant's mo​tion. If the claimant does make such a showing, the gov​ernment, to de​feat the motion, must respond with evidence showing that a factual issue ex​ists as to whether the prop​erty is for​feitable. The court also dis​cussed the steps to follow in evaluat​ing the govern​ment's motion for summary judgment in a forfeiture ac​tion. U.S. v. Four Parcels of Real Property in Greene and Tuscaloosa Counties, 941 F.2d 1428 (11th Cir. 1991) (en banc).xe "U.S. v. Four Parcels of Real Property in Greene and Tuscaloosa Counties, 941 F.2d 1428 (11th Cir. 1991) (en banc)."
11th Circuit finds genuine issue of fact concern​ing claimant's knowledge of hus​band's drug activity. (390) The government brought a civil forfeiture action against prop​erty jointly owned by claimant and her hus​band, which was used by her husband as a drop-off point for co​caine de​liveries. The district court denied claimant's mo​tion for summary judg​ment. The 11th Circuit dis​missed claimant's appeal for lack of jurisdic​tion, but then ruled that if it had ju​risdiction, it would affirm the district court's denial of the summary judg​ment motion. Claimant failed to show there was no is​sue of fact as to her innocent owner status. Defen​dant was present when the police arrived to search the home but elected to leave during the search. The evidence also in​dicated that defendant's husband used the home reg​ularly for illegal drugs. This raised an infer​ence that the claimant was not entirely ignorant of the cir​cumstances sur​rounding her hus​band's ac​tivities. U.S. v. Certain Real and Per​sonal Property Belonging to Ronald Jerome Hayes, 943 F.2d 1292 (11th Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. Certain Real and Per​sonal Property Belonging to Ronald Jerome Hayes, 943 F.2d 1292 (11th Cir. 1991)."
11th Circuit, en banc, reverses summary judgment in favor of claimant in forfeiture action against a bulldozer. (390) In an en banc decision the 11th Circuit reversed a summary judgment in favor of claimant in a forfeiture ac​tion against a bulldozer. The government showed that a con​victed drug dealer with no legal means of support pur​chased the bulldozer with $65,000 in cash. The drug dealer used the bulldozer for his own pur​poses, kept it on his prop​erty, and led others to believe that it was his. Claimant re​butted this showing with testi​mony that a dealer had pur​chased the bulldozer on claimant's behalf for claimant's log​ging business, that the bulldozer was de​preciated by the logging business in its state and fed​eral in​come tax returns, and that claimant permitted the dealer to use the bulldozer for his own pur​poses because the dealer oper​ated the bulldozer in claimant's logging business with​out com​pensation. How​ever, there were in​ternal inconsistencies with claimant's story and a jury could choose to disbelieve the ex​planation. The uncontested facts reasonably sug​gested that the dealer bought the bulldozer with the pro​ceeds of drug trans​actions. Whether claimant's expla​nation should be believed was a question for the jury, not the district court. Several judges dissented, finding the government failed to produce suffi​cient evidence. U.S. v. Four Parcels of Real Property in Greene and Tuscaloosa Counties, 941 F.2d 1428 (11th Cir. 1991) (en banc).xe "U.S. v. Four Parcels of Real Property in Greene and Tuscaloosa Counties, 941 F.2d 1428 (11th Cir. 1991) (en banc)."
11th Circuit affirms refusal to grant summary judg​ment to forfeit cashier's checks drawn on a Swiss bank account by drug fugitive. (390) The government sought to forfeit $200,000 in cashier's checks drawn on a Swiss bank account by a fugitive convicted of narcotics of​fenses. The fugitive's sis​ters had attempted to deposit the checks in a Panamanian bank but were re​fused and subsequently expelled from that country. The checks were seized when the sisters attempted to pass through customs in Miami without declaring the checks. The 11th Circuit affirmed the district court's order find​ing that the government had failed to show sufficient proba​ble cause to justify granting a motion for sum​mary judgment. The govern​ment's affidavit failed to show that a "substantial connection exists between the 20 cashiers checks at issue and the exchange of a controlled sub​stance." U.S. v. Twenty (20) Cashier's Checks, 897 F.2d 1567 (11th Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. Twenty (20) Cashier's Checks, 897 F.2d 1567 (11th Cir. 1990)."
District of Columbia district court finds substantial evidence that forfeiture funds were linked to illicit drug transactions and money laundering. (390) Claimant lived with her boyfriend and together they were charged with conspiracy to distribute and possess with the intent to distribute heroin and cocaine. She was acquitted. During the time in which she and the boyfriend lived together, she maintained bank and investment accounts in her name. Funds in the accounts were seized for civil forfeiture, and the government moved for summary judgment against the funds. The District of Columbia district court applied a two-pronged approach to determine if the funds were involved in money laundering and thus subject to forfeiture: (1) did the claimant know that the monetary instruments involved in a financial transaction represented proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, and (2) did she with that knowledge use the proceeds to conduct such a financial transaction which in fact involved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity (SUA). The court found that the government had presented substantial evidence to support the finding that the funds were linked to illicit drug transactions and money laundering. The court also found that the claimant failed to show that the funds derived solely from her legitimate income and had no connection to drug trafficking. Summary judgment granted to government. U.S. v. Funds from Prudential Securities, 2005 WL 459245 (D.D.C., Feb. 28, 2005). 

District of Columbia District Court holds that use of funds secured by illegally obtained property to release lien on aircraft warranted forfeiture. (390) In 2003, the government was granted summary judgment as to defendants’ real property under CAFRA, but the court denied both the government’s and the defendants’ motions for summary judgment as to those aspects of the motions that related to the defendants’ 1977 Piper Aztec Aircraft. Claimant had purchased the aircraft before engaging in his fraudulent scheme, and claimant’s money laundering conviction was vacated. However, the claimant used the aircraft as collateral for loans that caused the lien to be placed on the aircraft, and claimant obtained real property securing a second mortgage with illegally obtained funds. The District of Columbia District Court held that his use of funds he received from a second mortgage on real property to obtain release of a lien on the aircraft constituted money laundering activity involving the aircraft, and thus the aircraft was subject to forfeiture pursuant to CAFRA. Government granted forfeiture as to aircraft. U.S. v. Real Property Identified As Parcel 03179-005R, 2004 WL 726836 (D.D.C., Apr. 2, 2004). 

D.C. District Court applies Rule 12(b)(6) to deny summary judgment motion in ancillary proceeding. (390) BCCI was convicted in a criminal case and all its assets, including many bank accounts, were forfeited. Claimant here transferred funds to one such account without realizing that the account was subject to forfeiture. In the ancillary proceeding following entry of the judgment of forfeiture, claimant asserted that the wire transfer was void and that it still had title to the funds. The parties agreed that the case turned on whether defendant’s bank had “accepted” the wire transfer within the meaning of U.C.C., Article 4A. If so, the funds became the property of BCCI and were forfeit; if not, claimant retained title. The court held that when the government moves to dismiss a third-party claim in an ancillary proceeding, the court must apply the standard of Rule 12(b)(6), Fed. R. Civ. P., and assume that all facts alleged by the claimant are true. In the present case, determination of whether the funds had been “accepted” turned on disputed issues of fact, and therefore the government’s summary judgment motion was denied. U.S. v. BCCI Holdings (Luxembourg) S.A. (Petition of Banque Indosuez), 961 F.Supp. 282 (D.C.D.C. 1997).xe "U.S. v. BCCI Holdings (Luxembourg) S.A. (Petition of Banque Indosuez), 961 F.Supp. 282 (D.C.D.C. 1997)."
D.C. District Court denies claimant’s motion for summary judgment before discovery. (390) Defendant BCCI, an international bank holding company, was convicted of various criminal offenses and all its assets were forfeited. Claimant here transferred funds to a forfeited account without realizing that the account was subject to forfeiture. In the ancillary proceeding following entry of the judgment of forfeiture, claimant asserted that the wire transfer was void and that it still had title to the funds. The parties agreed that the case turned on whether defendant’s bank had “accepted” the wire transfer within the meaning of U.C.C., Article 4A. If so, the funds became the property of BCCI and were forfeit; if not, claimant retained title to the money. The government and claimant filed cross-motions for summary judgment. The court held that resolution of the central issue turned on disputed questions of fact. Hence, under Rule 56(f), Fed. R. Civ. P. (which the court held applicable to ancillary proceedings in criminal cases), the government was entitled to discovery before the court ruled on summary judgment. Therefore, claimant’s summary judgment motion was denied. U.S. v. BCCI Holdings (Luxembourg) S.A. (Petition of Banque Indosuez), 961 F.Supp. 282 (D.C.D.C. 1997).xe "U.S. v. BCCI Holdings (Luxembourg) S.A. (Petition of Banque Indosuez), 961 F.Supp. 282 (D.C.D.C. 1997)."
Alabama district court denies government’s motion for summary judgment and request for adverse inference because person who is both claimant in forfeiture case and defendant in a criminal case cannot be forced to choose between waiving the privilege of self-incrimination and losing his civil case on summary judgment. (390) (690) The government sought forfeiture of $55,526 seized from the home of Beachem in Chilton County, Alabama, and moved for summary judgment and to strike an affidavit, based on Beachem’s deposition, in which he declined to answer a variety of questions about the events preceding the seizure of the currency, the source of the currency, and his practices regarding distributing marijuana. Beachem's opposition to the summary judgment motion included an affidavit in which he explained the legitimate sources from which he obtained the seized currency and the reason he kept the currency in his home. The United States contended that Beachem cannot testify on his own behalf, by affidavit or otherwise, because he asserted his Fifth Amendment rights against self-incrimination in response to questions at his deposition, and that Beachem's invocation of these rights required the Court to draw adverse inferences against him. Beachem argued that at the time of his deposition he was facing pending criminal charges of possession of marijuana in another court. Since the date of his deposition, Beachem has entered a plea of guilty to felony possession of marijuana and has been sentenced. The Fifth Amendment does not forbid the drawing of adverse inferences against a claimant in a civil forfeiture action where that party refuses to testify in response to probative evidence offered against him. The Eleventh Circuit, while accepting the existence of this general rule, has acknowledged an exception where a person who is both a claimant in a forfeiture case and a defendant in a criminal case is forced to choose between waiving the privilege of self-incrimination and losing his civil case on summary judgment. To trigger the rule, the invocation of the privilege must automatically result in an adverse judgment, not merely the loss of the party's most effective defense. When the government required Beachem to be deposed during a time when he was facing criminal charges in another court arising out of the very same events as those from which the forfeiture case arose, it put him in the position of choosing between waiving his Fifth Amendment privilege or losing the forfeiture case on summary judgment. As the government argued, granting the motion to strike would require a ruling against Beachem on the summary judgment motion, which necessarily would result in an adverse judgment against Beachem rather than merely stripping him of his most effective defense.  Accordingly, the Court refused to strike Beachem's affidavit, nor make any adverse inference from the fact that Beachem asserted his Fifth Amendment rights at his deposition. The court also found genuine issues of material fact and denied summary judgment. U.S. v. Fifty Five Thousand Five Hundred Twenty Six ($55,526) Dollars In U.S. Currency, 2007 WL 4365467 (M.D.Ala. 2007)(December 11, 2007).

Alabama district court grants summary judgment of forfeiture where $52,000 cash was unusually high amount to carry and government’s net worth analysis showed that claimant would have substantial deficit, not a positive cash flow, and all parties involved had criminal histories. (390, 445) Atteba Nettles was stopped at a security checkpoint at the Mobile, Alabama Regional Airport, where the police determined that he had three separate sealed envelopes in his jacket, which contained $20,000.00, $20,000.00, and $12,000.00, respectively. Nettles told officers he was traveling to New York, while employed by his cousin Bernard Jackson, to purchase various items including a vehicle, and purses and athletic shoes for resale in the Mobile area. He was traveling on a round-trip airline ticket purchased that morning with $1,100.70 cash, with a return to Mobile six days later. His luggage contained no toiletries, one pair of blue jeans, one new shirt, and one package of underwear; however, Nettles said he planned to do some shopping in New York. (He also had $612.00 cash in his wallet and no credit cards.) The $52,000.00 cash was seized and the government filed a civil forfeiture complaint, and then moved for summary judgment, arguing that the above facts and the narcotics-related criminal history of all of the individuals involved are probative to establish the connection of the Defendant currency with narcotics activity. The claimant, Jackson, argued that the Defendant’s $52,000 was not for the purchase of drugs nor proceeds from the sale of drugs, but that $37,000 is the result of his own work and savings, and $15,000 is the proceeds of a loan from Marty Vickery. The court first noted that the government need not prove that the money is traceable to a specific transaction in illicit drugs; it need only prove by a preponderance of the evidence that the money is substantially connected to drug trafficking generally. The court then held that it is undisputed that $52,000 in cash is an unusually high sum of cash to carry on one's person, and that the government’s detailed analysis of the claimant's income and expenses from 1999 to 2005 showed he would have had a substantial deficit at the time of the seizure, not a positive cash flow. Finally, the narcotics-related criminal history of all of the three parties involved (Nettles, Jackson and Vickery) was probative of a substantial connection with narcotics activity. Jackson claimed his drug history ended by 1999. Though these factors taken individually may not have sufficed to meet the government's burden, considered in the aggregate they provided sufficient evidence of a substantial connection of the currency to illicit drug activities. Other than Jackson generally denying he was involved in illegal drug activity and asserting that the money was legitimately earned, Vickery was deposed and when asked about the purported loan agreement between himself and Jackson, invoked his Fifth Amendment privilege against self-incrimination.
In dicta, the court stated that even if the $15,000.00 were from a legitimate source, once commingled with the $37,000.00 bearing a “substantial connection” to illicit activity, the legitimate funds become “illegitimate” and are subject to forfeiture. Thus, the court granted the government’s motion for summary judgment. U.S. v. $52,000.00, More or Less, in U.S. Currency, 2007 WL 1624786 (S.D. Ala. 2007) (June 5, 2007). 

Arizona district court denies government’s Rule 59(e) motion to alter judgment in favor of claimant because court applied proper standard for granting summary judgment, government failed to seek additional time for discovery, “substantial connection” test applies to proceeds cases, and government nevertheless could not sufficiently meet its burden of proof. (390) The court granted the pro se claimant’s motion for summary judgment, and the government filed a motion to stay judgment and a motion to alter or amend judgment pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 59(e). Relief may be granted under Rule 59(e) if the Court 1) is presented with newly discovered evidence, 2) committed clear error or the initial decision was manifestly unjust, or 3) if there is an intervening change in controlling law. The government's motion essentially argued that the Court committed clear error in granting summary judgment, and first argued that the claimant did not satisfy his initial burden of demonstrating the absence of a genuine issue of material fact. However, the Court did not err in construing the motion liberally to assert that the government could not meet its burden of proof in this case, a proper basis for summary judgment. The government next suggested that the claimant's motion was filed before adequate discovery had been conducted. However, FRCP 56(e) provides a clear mechanism for the Government to raise this issue and seek additional time for discovery, but the Government never did so. Motions under Rule 59(e) are not the place for parties to assert arguments that could have been made, but were not made, in their original briefs. The government further argued that although it was not the moving party, the Court nonetheless held it to the burden of preponderance of the evidence, which would only have been appropriate if it were the moving party or if the matter had proceeded to trial, suggesting that it is subject to a lower burden at the summary judgment stage—that it must do nothing more than create a question of fact and need not present evidence sufficient to satisfy its preponderance-of-the-evidence burden. The government was wrong, according to the Supreme Court, because the inquiry involved in a motion for summary judgment necessarily implicates the substantive evidentiary standard of proof that would apply at the trial on the merits. Here, the court concluded that the evidence presented by the government would not enable reasonable jurors to find by a preponderance of the evidence that the government was entitled to a verdict in the case. The government also argued that the court erred in applying the “substantial connection” test to the seized money, because the money was seized as “proceeds” of a drug offense, and the government is required to show only a nexus between the property and the offense, not a substantial connection in such cases, citing 21 U.S.C. §881(c)(6). However, the government did not cite §881(c)(6) in response to the claimant's motion and did not argue that a mere nexus must be proved, and motions for reconsideration are not the place for parties to assert arguments not raised in their original briefs. In addition, some courts have held that the substantial connection standard applies to the forfeiture of proceeds under 18 U.S.C. §881(c)(6). Such a conclusion comports with the language of CAFRA, since proceeds from drug trafficking certainly are used to commit or facilitate the commission of drug offenses or are involved in the commission of a criminal offense as required by 18 U.S.C. §983(c)(3). Moreover, cases in the Ninth Circuit suggest that the substantial connection test applies to proceeds cases. Nevertheless, even if the substantial connection test does not apply to drug proceeds, the government did not present evidence sufficient for a reasonable jury to find that the $32,000 was purchase money for, or proceeds from, a drug sale. The government next argued that the court improperly weighed evidence and drew inferences reserved for the fact-finder. However, the court stated that after examining every piece of evidence listed by the government in support of its position, and after thoroughly analyzing cases that have defined what evidence is necessary to meet the government's burden of proof, it concluded that the evidence presented by the government was not sufficient for a reasonable jury to find in its favor. Finally, the government argued the court erred by according the non-sophisticated dog alert minimal weight. However, non-sophisticated dog alerts are of little probative value under Ninth Circuit law. Thus, the court denied the government’s motion to alter or amend the judgment. U.S. v. $32,000 in U.S. Currency, 2007 WL 1526764 (D.Ariz. 2007) (May 24, 2007). 

Arizona district grants summary judgment for pro se claimant because previous drug possession conviction, unconcealed cash, inconsistent statements, and unsophisticated dog alert were not sufficiently probative of drug trafficking. (390) Phoenix police detectives received information regarding two individuals traveling by air from St. Louis to Las Vegas, with a connection in Phoenix. The claimant's one way ticket was purchased with a third-party credit card the night before the flight. During a layover in Phoenix, investigators made consensual contact with both men and questioned them separately. Claimant provided an Indiana driver's license, but did not have his airplane ticket, and instead presented a ticket in a woman’s name. Both men made inconsistent statements, the claimant stating the other was his uncle and the other denying knowing the claimant. Claimant voluntarily produced three bundles of cash totaling $32,000 from his pockets, and $560 of “personal” money from another pocket. He said the two were traveling to Las Vegas to gamble, but had not made a hotel reservation or bought a return ticket home because they were not sure how long they would stay. He explained that the $32,000 came from the sale of houses in Indianapolis and had withdrawn the money from a safe deposit box due to a distrust of financial institutions, and that his only other income source was gambling. He had five children with five different women, paid child support to only one mother but “takes care” of the other children, owned a vehicle but did not owe car payments, and did not have a permanent residence but lived with family members. He admitted he smoked marijuana daily and had been convicted of possession of marijuana. A narcotics detection canine gave a positive alert on the currency, and he then admitted he recently carried a bag of marijuana next to his personal money. Claimant moved pro se for summary judgment on the grounds that the government could not meet its burden of proof that the money was connected to drug trafficking or money laundering as alleged in the civil forfeiture complaint. The government argued several factors in the aggregate and demonstrated a substantial connection between the seized money and the crimes. The court first found that the claimant's cash was not alone sufficient to establish a substantial connection between the money and drug activity by a preponderance of the evidence. The claimant admitted he possessed a large quantity of cash and turned it over to investigators, and the cash was not concealed in a manner traditionally associated with drug crimes. The government also produced no evidence that the claimant's explanation for the money was not true, and did not explain why a factfinder should assume he was too generous in the support of his children to allow him to have $32,000 in cash. The court also recognized that keeping large sums of money at home and small sums in a bank would be consistent with a distrust of banks. Further, the Ninth Circuit has held that non-sophisticated dog alerts are of very little probative value. In addition, the claimant’s previous conviction of possessing marijuana once was not a probative criminal record, and no cases have held that an admitted personal use of drugs helps demonstrate a substantial connection between seized currency and drug trafficking. Moreover, the Government did not explain why admittedly inconsistent statements are particularly probative of narcotics trafficking or money laundering, as opposed to other crimes, and the claimant made no inconsistent statements regarding the amount of money he held and showed authorities the $32,000 willingly. The Court concluded it must apply the CAFRA standard, which imposes a more exacting burden on the Government than the former probable cause standard, and that the Ninth Circuit precedent and CAFRA therefore required a conclusion that the government did not meet its burden of proof. Although the claimant's behavior was clearly suspicious and even suggested criminal activity, suspicious behavior is not enough, but the government must establish a substantial connection to drug crimes before the assets of private citizens can be forfeited. U.S. v. $32,000 in U.S. Currency, 2007 WL 1297098 (D. Ariz. 2007) (April 30, 2007).

Arizona district court holds that granting of motion to suppress did not result in automatic summary judgment for claimants so long as the government could prove forfeiture through untainted evidence. (670, 390) The government filed a civil complaint for forfeiture against seized currency, and after litigation the Court granted a motion to suppress filed by claimants and denied cross motions for summary judgment, pointing out that the granting of the suppression motion did not result in automatic summary judgment for claimants so long as the government could prove the forfeiture through untainted evidence. Citing 18 U.S.C.§§983(c)(1)-(2), which allows the government to use evidence gathered after the filing of the complaint to prove forfeiture, it reasoned that if the claimants' argument were correct, the government would never be able to use after-acquired evidence in a forfeiture where the court suppressed evidence. The court eventually granted summary judgment for the government, finding that affidavits by cooperating individuals and paragraphs form an agent’s affidavit were untainted because they concerned events that were corroborated as occurring prior to the illegal search, and that although the denominations making up the amount and the actual money itself could not be put into evidence, the court could still take notice of the fact that the defendant property was in the form of cash, which was obviously stated in the caption of the case. The government thus fulfilled its burden of proof, and claimants did not produce any evidence that they are innocent owners because a negative inference drawn from their invoking the Fifth Amendment to requests for admissions precluded such a finding. U.S. v. $493,850.00 in U.S. Currency, 2006 WL 163570 (D.Ariz. 2006) (January 23, 2006).

California district court grants summary judgment because evidence of dog alert, Express Mail packaging characteristics, “source” and “destination” cities, alleged contradictory statements, and old drug conviction in their totality did not constitute probable cause for forfeiture at the time complaint was filed. (390) During a routine inspection of packages, Postal Inspector Rofe examined the exterior of an Express Mail parcel in a cardboard box, with a handwritten Express Mail label that did not contain a business account number. The Subject Parcel was addressed to Peter Moore in Gardena, California, from the claimant Sharlene Gibbs in Lithonia, Georgia. According to the Complaint, the United States Postal Service has “identified the Los Angeles and Long Beach areas as major source areas for controlled substances, meaning that controlled substances are frequently transported from the Los Angeles and Long Beach areas via the United States mail, and the proceeds from the sale of the controlled substances are frequently returned to the Los Angeles and Long Beach areas via the United States Mail.” Apparently, Postal Inspectors feel that drug traffickers often use the Express Mail Service for these activities, and thus regularly “investigate” Express Mail packages “suspected of containing controlled substances and proceeds from the sale of controlled substances in Los Angeles.” Circumstances that may raise this suspicion in the minds of Postal Inspectors are alleged to include: (1) the type of packaging (drug dealers supposedly use Express Mail boxes, flat cardboard mailers, or tyvek envelopes); (2) handwritten labels; (3) lack of a business account number; and (4) origin or destination in “an area that is a known origination point for controlled substances, or ... known destination point for mailings of controlled substances.” Gardena, California, is alleged to be a “known destination point for narcotics trafficking proceeds.” Rofe telephoned the number listed for the sender of the package, and spoke with the claimant and then later Mr. Moore, and found their statements contradictory. Moore had a 10-year-old drug conviction, and a dog alerted on the currency. The government filed a complaint for forfeiture of the $17,700.00 in cash found in the parcel. In a summary judgment motion, the claimant recited the above allegations and provided a declaration, in which she stated she provided the government with a W-2 showing that her annual salary was $85,000 and produced a copy of an Allstate insurance proceeds check for $18,968.21 that she had cashed shortly before she mailed the package. Claimant also provided interrogatory responses from the Government indicating that the only three types of Express Mail packaging provided by the USPS include boxes, flat cardboard mailers, and tyvek envelopes. In opposition to the motion, the Government provided no evidence of any sort, and did not dispute the evidence offered by Claimant. Claimant argued that the government could not meet its burden of showing probable cause to believe that the defendant currency was connected to drugs when the complaint was filed. In light of the Government's extremely short, and rather perfunctory, opposition, it should come as little surprise to the Government to learn that the court agreed. None of the facts presented by the Government, either alone or in the aggregate, rose to the level of probable cause. At most, they raised a suspicion that there might be a connection to drugs, but this was not sufficient. The fact that a drug detection dog gave a positive alert to the outside of the package may have been sufficient probable cause to obtain a warrant to open the package, but no drugs were found when the package was opened. That either the package itself or the money therein may have been contaminated with sufficient drug residue to trigger the alert is not convincing evidence, especially in light of the government's apparent assertion that virtually every personal Express Mail package sent in this country is somehow connected to the drug trade. Certain controlled substances have been found to be rather “adhesive,” and easily transferred from one contaminated surface to another. Further, the Ninth Circuit has long recognized that this nation's currency supply is not particularly pristine. Therefore, a positive dog alert must be combined with “other credible evidence clearly connecting the money to drugs.” Here, however, much of the government's case rested on the packaging—that is, the fact that the parcel was an Express Mail cardboard box, of the kind sold by the USPS specifically for use in sending packages through the Express Mail service, with a handwritten label, and not charged to a business account. However, the Government presented no evidence that this type of packaging is preferred by drug dealers, other than the subjective opinion of one Postal Inspector, whose background, qualifications, length of service, and basis for forming this opinion, while they may be unimpeachable, were not provided to the court. Without any evidence, the court was not prepared to find that every personal package sent through Express Mail, in packaging sold by the USPS for that purpose, should be assumed to be from, or sent to, a drug dealer. The fact that this particular package was sent to the allegedly “known destination point for narcotics trafficking proceeds” of Gardena, California, also did not help. Also, the statements identified by the government did not appear to be particularly inconsistent, especially in light of the other facts known to the government before it filed the Complaint: that the sender and addressee of the parcel appeared to be using real names and correct addresses, and that the claimant had provided evidence of a significant salary and a legitimate source for the seized money. Although, it may seem somewhat odd to send $17,000 through the mail, rather than using a more secure source of payment, and it may even raise a suspicion that Claimant could have been involved in some illegal activity, even if this suspicion is indulged, “mere suspicion of illegal activity is not enough to establish probable cause that the money was connected to drugs.” Here, the only potential connection to drugs other than the dog alert was Moore's admission that he had been convicted of a drug offense 10 years before. Neither in itself, nor combined with the other evidence available to the government at the time the complaint was filed, was this sufficient to give rise to probable cause. Thus, the claimant's motion for summary judgment was granted. U.S. v. $17,700.00 in U.S. Currency, 2008 WL 4838491 (C.D.Cal. 2008) (November 6, 2008).

California district court denies summary judgment because of disputed issue of material fact over whether marijuana grown on claimant's property was in compliance with state medical marijuana law. (390) The claimant owner of the defendant real property admitted that someone was manufacturing marijuana at the property with his knowledge. He moved for summary judgment, however, asserting that the plants were grown for "lawful, medicinal purposes" in conformity with California law, and that forfeiture would violate the Eighth Amendment's prohibition of excessive fines. The district court denied the motion, finding that there was a disputed issue of material fact as to whether the property was subject to forfeiture under the Controlled Substances Act (“CSA”). The court noted that at the time claimant's land was searched and marijuana plants discovered, it was legal under the California Compassionate Use Act to grow a certain quantity of marijuana for medical purposes. Moreover, in 2003 the Ninth Circuit had held that the CSA is unconstitutional as it exceeds Congress' powers under the Commerce Clause and thus, cannot preempt the California Companionate Use Act. Although the Ninth Circuit's decision was later overruled by the Supreme Court in 2005, the claimant claimed that at the time he decided to cultivate medical marijuana, he was relying on the Ninth Circuit's Raich decision, which had not yet been questioned by the Supreme Court. The court found that if claimant was in fact complying with California law at the time the marijuana plants were discovered, then the real property may not have been subject to forfeiture pursuant to the CSA, because the Supreme Court's decision in Raich was not retroactive. Because there was a disputed issue of material fact over whether the marijuana grown on claimant's property was in compliance with the Compassionate Use Act, summary judgment was denied. The court further held that since it had not yet been established if forfeiture was appropriate, it need not analyze the excessive fines issued at that time. U.S. v. Real Property Located at 11550 Mushroom Trail, 2006 WL 191935 (E.D.Cal. 2006) (January 19, 2006 ).

Florida district court denies government’s motion for summary judgment because under Florida law claimant is no longer a general unsecured creditor on vehicles, his security interest is automatically perfected and he is not required to record if he takes possession of the collateral. (390)(475) King became a perfectly-attached secured creditor when he took possession of the automobiles Federal agents seized a 2003 Lamborghini Murcielago and 2004 Dodge Viper which they believed were purchased by Thomas Bojadzijev and Lisa Clymer through funds traceable to criminal activities. Claimant John Bruce King challenged the Government's action for forfeiture of the automobiles, asserting that he possessed an ownership interest in the automobiles resulting from loan agreements with Bojadzijev and Clymer. Bojadzijev and Clymer had deposited funds derived from a fraud scheme into bank accounts, and withdrew funds from these same accounts to purchase the Lamborghini and Dodge automobiles. King filed a Claim and Answer to the government's action for forfeiture claiming innocent ownership, saying he loaned Bojadzijev $200,000 on February 10, 2006, in exchange for a 100% ownership interest and physical possession of the Lamborghini as security. King and Bojadzijev memorized the agreement in a promissory note, and King's ownership interest was reflected in a title certificate from the State of Florida and a document from State Farm, Bojadzijev's insurance company, recognizing King as an “additional insured.” That same day, King similarly loaned Clymer $35,000 in exchange for a 100% ownership interest and physical possession of the Dodge Viper to hold as security. Bojadzijev and Clymer paid back the loans but King stated that almost immediately thereafter, they asked to borrow another $190,000. King agreed, and the parties executed promissory notes memorializing a loan of $150,000 to Bojadzijev with the Lamborghini as collateral and $40,000 with the Dodge as collateral. The parties agreed that the certificates of title from the previous loans would reflect King's status of a lien holder under the new agreement and to “carry over” King's status as an additional insured from the first set of loans to the second set of loans. The government moved for summary judgment arguing that King presented no evidence that he was a “bona fide purchaser for value.” King filed an affidavit saying he not aware that the automobiles were purchased with funds derived from criminal activities. The government argued that King only became an “owner” when he recorded his security interest six days after he learned that the automobiles were subject for forfeiture, and thus he cannot be considered a bona fide purchaser for value. The court said the government's argument suffered from two flaws. First, under Florida law, a creditor's interest in collateral attaches, and the creditor therefore becomes a secured creditor, upon the execution of a security agreement. At that point, the creditor is no longer a general unsecured creditor, and if he takes possession of the collateral, his security interest is automatically perfected and he is not required to record. King became a perfectly-attached secured creditor when he took possession of the automobiles. He also met the definition of a bailee “owner” under 18 U.S.C. §983(d)(6)(B)(ii) when he took possession of the automobiles. The government next argued that King was not an “innocent owner” because King either knew or had reason to know that the automobiles were subject to forfeiture at the time he gained an ownership interest. King presented only one piece of evidence that supports his claim that he was not aware that the automobiles were subject to forfeiture, on page ten of his affidavit, where he stated that he learned of the seizure warrants for the automobiles only because he was told about them during a call from a federal agent. The government essentially argued that a claimant must always produce, at the summary judgment stage, evidence that corroborates his denial that he knew the property was subject to forfeiture. However, this position is contradicted by the language of 983(d)(3)(A), which only requires the claimant to prove that he “did not know and was reasonably without cause to believe that the property was subject to forfeiture.” Nowhere does the statute require the claimant to investigate whether the property was subject to forfeiture or produce other evidence that negates the possibility of “willful blindness.” Of course, the claimant's failure to investigate may be highly probative circumstantial evidence that he actually knew the property was subject to forfeiture, and the failure to investigate may also defeat the reasonableness of the claimant's belief that the property was not subject to forfeiture. However,  in this case, however, King denies knowing that the automobiles were subject to forfeiture, and the government did not point to any circumstantial evidence in the record that made his denial appear objectively unreasonable, and there is no evidence in the record demonstrating that King should have known that Bojadzijev and Clymer were violating federal laws. Therefore, genuine issues of material fact existed and summary judgment was denied. U.S. v.2003 Lamborghini Murcielago, 2007 WL 4287674 (M.D.Fla. 2007) (December 6, 2007).

Florida District Court denies claimants summary judgment in case seeking return of oil paintings seized for criminal forfeiture. (390) The government seized two valuable original oil paintings purchased by claimant in 1989 and 1990. She possessed the certificates of authenticity and paid for their storage until the government seized the paintings in 2002. In 2001, the claimant had met Mr. Clemente, who offered to help her sell the paintings. New England Capital was formed to facilitate the transfer and sale of the paintings. The paintings were seized from a warehouse pursuant to a criminal investigation of Mr. Clemente. In his indictment, the government alleged that Mr. Clemente alleged that he owned the paintings and used them as part of a money laundering scheme involving the sale of controlled substances. The purchaser filed a civil Complaint alleging that the paintings belonged solely to her and New England Capital. The government noticed the deposition of New England Capital, but no representative of the firm appeared at the deposition. The Southern District of Florida District Court denied plaintiff’s/claimant’s motion for summary judgment because several material facts remain in issue, including discrepancies between plaintiff’s earlier and more recently filed pleadings and the failure to produce evidence indicating that New England Capital owned the paintings. Denied. DeSaro v. U.S., 2004 WL 390798 (S.D. Fla., Mar. 1, 2004).

Florida District Court grants summary judgment against adulterated shrimp. (390) Claimant, a seafood importer, sold several lots of Chinese shrimp to Singleton Seafood Company, conditional upon inspec​tion of the crustaceans by the Food and Drug Adminis​tration (FDA). The FDA found the shrimp to be decom​posed and contaminated with “filth.” Thus, Singleton rejected the goods and the FDA seized them pursuant to a warrant of arrest in rem. Claimant sought return of the shrimp because it had paid a Chinese exporting consor​tium for them and could not be repaid under its contract unless the shrimp were returned. The district court found the shrimp to be “adulterated food” and thus forfeitable. Claimant’s commercial requirements did not alter this finding. Summary judgment on the issue of forfeiture was entered, together with an order requiring claimant to pay costs. U.S. v. 302 Cases, 321 Cases, and 420 Cases, More or Less, of Frozen Shrimp, 25 F.Supp.2d 1352 (M.D. Fla. 1998).xe "U.S. v. 302 Cases, 321 Cases, and 420 Cases, More or Less, of Frozen Shrimp, 25 F.Supp.2d 1352 (M.D. Fla. 1998)."
Illinois district court grants other claimants’ motion for summary judgment as to claim of third-party claimant/victim of fraud scheme, because claimant did not trace its invested funds to the seized bank account. (390) The government filed a civil forfeiture action pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §981 for the forfeiture of $2,767,202.27, which it asserted represented money obtained by Leslie Strong from investors as a result of a fraudulent investment scheme. The court determined first that a claimant investor must establish not only that it had maintained investments with Strong within the relevant time periods, but that its investment can be traced to actual seized funds. Six claimants moved for summary judgment against the claim of Burlington Assembly of God, arguing that the evidence established that Burlington could not prove its claim to the money. Burlington invested $1,100,000.00 which was transferred out of the defendant’s account to an unidentified recipient, and the other claimants argued that because Burlington's funds were transferred out before their investments went in (and the account was seized), its claim should be barred. The government, siding with the other six claimants, pointed out that until contacted by United States Postal employees, Burlington took no action to follow-up on its transfer of $1.1 million; it did nothing to find out what happened to its funds, what interest it was earning and why nothing had been paid to them. The court held that Burlington did not present sufficient evidence to refute what the bank statements and business records established, i.e., that it could not trace its funds to the $2.76 million, and thus did not meet its burden under summary judgment standards. U.S. v. Two Million Seven Hundred Sixty-Seven Thousand Two Hundred and Two Dollars and Twenty-Seven Cents ($2,767,202.27) in U.S. Currency, 2006 WL 3253373 (C.D.Ill. 2006) (Nov. 8, 2006).

Illinois district court denies claimant’s motion for summary judgment based on disputed issues of fact, and declines to order disclosure of informant who was not vital to claimant’s case. (390, 370) The government’s civil forfeiture complaint alleged that law enforcement agents conducted a traffic stop and a canine search of the vehicle. The dog positively alerted on the vehicle for a detection of narcotics, and troopers found $4,790.00 in cash in the trunk. Both occupants denied ownership of the currency and were released. The complaint alleged the money was connected to drugs. The claimant, the father of one of the car’s occupants, claimed ownership of the money and moved for disclosure of an informant and for summary judgment. He contended the complaint demonstrated nothing more than an illegal seizure, and that the government could not show a substantial connection between the money and the underlying criminal activity. The government contended that two key facts remained in dispute, whether the claimant was in fact the owner of the currency, and whether the currency was connected to drugs. In addition, it contended the information provided by the confidential informant merely enabled law enforcement to begin surveillance on the car’s occupants, who allegedly were collecting money to purchase cocaine, and that the informant's testimony was not vital to the claimant's claim to the funds. It alleged that disclosure would serve only to provide the claimant with the opportunity to attack the informant's credibility, but would not disprove the facts surrounding the seizure of the funds and subsequent events. The Court agreed, finding that the public's interest in protecting the flow of information and the personal safety of the informant outweighed the claimant's need for the information. Thus, the motions were denied. U.S. v. Four Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety Dollars ($4,790.00) in U.S. Currency, 2005 WL 3115491 (C.D.Ill. 2005) (Nov. 21, 2005).

Illinois District Court rejects excessive fines argument raised after disposition of summary judgment motion. (390) Claimants in this civil narcotics forfeiture action litigated and lost a motion for summary judgment. Several weeks later, they filed a new motion arguing that the forfeiture was an excessive fine in violation of the Eighth Amendment. The district court denied the motion, largely in reliance on “the often repeated and basic principle that a party confronted with a potentially dispositive Rule 56 motion cannot hold something back, with the idea that if the motion is lost the party . . . can then reach back and pull an unused arrow from the legal quiver.” The court also found that claimants’ argument failed on its merits. U.S. v. 47 West 644 Route 38, 1998 WL 595504 (N.D. Ill. 1996) (not reported in F.Supp.).xe "U.S. v. 47 West 644 Route 38, 1998 WL 595504 (N.D. Ill. 1996) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
Louisiana District Court denies claimant’s motion for summary judgment. (390) Police stopped claimant on suspicion of drunk driving and discovered $13,900 in cash. The money was turned over to federal authorities for forfeiture as narcotics proceeds. Claimant moved for summary judgment on the ground that the government had insufficient evidence of any nexus between the money and drug trafficking. The district court denied the motion, finding that the following factors established that there were genuine issues of material fact precluding summary judgment: (1) claimant possessed a gun; (2) the money was wrapped in small bundles; (3) claimant lied to the police about the source of the money: and (4) a narcotics dog alerted to the money. U.S. v. $13,900 U.S. Currency, 1998 WL564312 (E.D. La. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.).

xe "U.S. v. $13,900 U.S. Currency, 1998 WL564312 (E.D. La. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
Michigan district court denies summary judgment to wife where government alleged (badges of fraud( existed in execution of marital agreement and wife should have been aware of her husband's fraudulent activities. (390) The claimant was the wife of a man who was under investigation for fraud by the FBI, which seized all of the husband(s assets, including bank account funds which the claimant alleged were legitimately hers from a business deal between her and her husband. She alleged they signed a marital agreement whereby the claimant exchanged her interests in a gas station and parking facility to her husband for future cash payments totaling $950,000 and other consideration. Because the husband made payments only totaling $700,000, the claimant filed suit against him to recover the balance due, and the suit was settled in exchange for his transfer of stock to her. The money received from the stock transfer and cash payments was deposited into the bank accounts seized by the government. Claimant alleged she had no knowledge of her husband's fraudulent actions and qualifies as an "innocent owner," and moved for summary judgment. The government argued there were "badges of fraud" associated with the marital agreement, including that the claimant and her husband had a close relationship at the time of the marital agreement, she admitted in her deposition that she did not consult an attorney before entering into the marital agreement, she agreed to the deal without an appraisal to the property(s true value, she agreed to postpone payment until almost two years later, and no witnesses signed the agreement, which was not notarized. The government also argued that the claimant should have been aware of her husband's activities, her willful blindness is not sufficient to support an innocent owner defense, and that she returned over $455,000 to her husband's family shortly after receiving the funds pursuant to the marital agreement. The court concluded there remains a question as to whether Claimant is an innocent owner and thus denied summary judgment. U.S. v. One Hundred Fourteen Thousand Three Hundred Ninety-Nine Dollars and Sixty Two Cents in U.S. Currency ($114,399.62) from Charter One Bank Account No. 385-1330751, 2006 WL 305757 (E.D.Mich. 2006) (Feb. 7, 2006).

Michigan District Court finds genuine issue of material fact existed as to whether currency was connected to illegal activity. (390) Claimant was arrested for being in the U.S. illegally, and $21,875 in traveler’s money orders and currency was seized from him. Claimant had four violations of a state controlled substances act involving possession of cocaine with intent to distribute and had been deported twice. He had used aliases and false birth dates. He claimed to have worked at a variety of jobs in the U.S. that provided him legitimate sources of income. The government filed a civil forfeiture action against the traveler’s checks and currency and subsequently filed a motion for summary judgment, alleging that the seized funds were proceeds of illegal drug transactions. The government presented evidence of his prior drug convictions, his uses of aliases, and the suspicious manner in which he and his cousins purchased the money orders, and claimant offered plausible rebuttal testimony suggesting that he owned a licensed business and earned profits from the operation of that business. Finding that a genuine issue of material fact existed as to whether the funds were connected to illegal activity, the Eastern District of Michigan district court denied the government’s summary judgment motion. U.S. v. $21,000 in U.S. Postal Money Orders and $785.00 in U.S. Currency, 2003 WL 23148887 (E.D. Mich., Dec. 17, 2003). 

New Mexico District Court denies motion for summary judgment to forfeit vehicle allegedly used to transport counterfeit currency. (390) Government moved for summary judgment and sought forfeiture of 1997 Ford Expedition claiming vehicle was used to transport counterfeit U.S. currency in violation of 49 U.S.C. §80302. Claimants raised three defenses: (1) Roberta Archuleta was entitled to an innocent-owner defense, (2) forfeiture of the Expedition would violate the Eighth Amendment Excessive Fines Clause, and (3) there are genuine issues of material fact as to whether the Ford Expedition was connected to any violation of §80302. Despite evidence indicative of a scheme to trade in counterfeit currency, the court denied the motion for summary judgment with respect to whether the vehicle was connected to criminal activity. In support of its ruling, the court emphasized that neither claimant was ever prosecuted for a crime involving the allegedly counterfeit currency, which the court posited could be based on insufficient evidence of criminal intent, a deliberate decision to pursue forfeiture instead of criminal penalties, or some other reason. U.S. v. One 1997 Ford Expedition Utility Vehicle, 2001 WL 289873 (D.N.M. 2001). 

New York district court grants summary judgment in favor of claimants because forged historical documents were not used to facilitate the alleged criminal violation; however, the court orders that documents will be released only after government places a visible mark on the back of each document indicating that they were forgeries. (190, 390, 450) The government commenced a forfeiture action against approximately 250 forged documents purporting to be the writings of John F. Kennedy and other prominent historical figures, alleged to have been used in a mail and wire fraud scheme to sell forged documents. The government also sought a judicial declaration that the documents may be destroyed to prevent the documents from reentering the marketplace where other innocent unsuspecting purchasers, like the victim-claimants there, could be deceived into believing the documents are authentic and highly valuable as such. Approximately 50 claimants originally contested forfeiture, and in an effort to resolve the matter, the government offered to return the documents to all claimants provided they are stamped, in a prominent manner across the text thereof, that they are forgeries; all claimants, with the exception of John and Deborah Lee Sabolich, were willing to accept the Government's proposed compromise. The Saboliches instead moved for summary judgment dismissing the complaint and ordering the government to return the 11 documents they purchased for over $800,000 as an investment, contending the documents do not constitute “proceeds” subject to forfeiture and that they were innocent owners. The government produced copies of the Saboliches' documents with exhibit stickers, on their face, indicating they were introduced into evidence at trial of the criminal defendant, Cusack. At Cusack's sentencing, the trial judge observed that “[t]he evidence at trial conclusively demonstrated that all of the Cusack documents are indeed forgeries and were authored by Cusack.” In the forfeiture case, the government contended that the documents were the proceeds of Cusack's mail and wire fraud because he obtained them as a result of his fraudulent misrepresentations regarding the documents' origin and content. The court held, however, that Cusack's false representations as to the authenticity of the writings were not used to “obtain” the documents. Rather, his fraudulent misrepresentations allowed him to obtain approximately $7 million from the sale of the documents which he thereafter used to finance a lavish lifestyle. It was those monies he obtained, and any substituted assets traceable thereto (such as: homes, cars and designer clothing), that constituted the proceeds of his mail and wire fraud activities. The documents instead were the instrumentality or means that enabled Cusack to commit the crimes, from which he reaped his ill-gotten gains, i.e., the subject matter of that fraud. On the other hand, 18 U.S.C. §981(a) (1)(A), upon which the government's second cause of action for forfeiture was premised, provides that the property must simply be “involved in” a transaction in violation of specified money laundering statutes, which includes property used to facilitate a money laundering offense. The government thus claimed that the documents were involved in a violation of 18 U.S.C. §1957. The court found, however, that the complaint was bereft of any factual allegations to support a claim that the documents themselves were used to facilitate a money laundering transaction. The documents were not property that were themselves being laundered nor were they otherwise involved in, derived from, or used to facilitate a money laundering offense. The court thus held that the claimants were legally entitled to regain possession of their documents. However, it added that the laws do not affirmatively afford the claimants the absolute right to obtain their property in its original criminally-tainted condition. That legally protected possessory right is limited to the documents' true character and intrinsic worth. Even as innocent owners, they would have the responsibility to prevent any further illegal use of the documents. Thus, the court held that visibly marking the back of each of the documents to indicate that the government has concluded that they are forgeries will negate any artificially inflated value, will not alter their textual content and will best safeguard their aesthetic appearance. U.S. v. Approximately 250 Documents Containing the Forged Hand Writing of President John F. Kennedy and Others, 2008 WL 4129814 (S.D.N.Y.) (September 5, 2008).

New York District Court finds Merrill Lynch fund holder failed to prove she is an innocent owner. (390) Cassonic, a wholesale dealer of metallurgical products incorporated in the Cayman Islands, wanted to expand. Konig, the purported manager of a Portuguese financial institution, recommended to Cassonic a high-yield investment program allegedly run by an investment company affiliated with the Rothschild family. Konig notified Cassonic to wire funds to a bank in New York City for a Merrill Lynch account, and $1 million was wired. Six months later, after not receiving either a T-bill or a bank guarantee in return for its investment, Cassonic demanded the return of its funds but received no response from Konig. Cassonic later learned that it had actually wired funds into another account held by Clemente and that Merrill Lynch had instituted an interpleader action seeking a judicial determination as to who owned the funds in that account. Clemente was thereafter convicted of criminal charges in connection with her alleged possession of funds in her Merrill Lynch account that had been obtained from sources other than Cassonic. Those funds were forfeitured to the government. Clemente argued that she was an innocent owner of the funds wired from Cassonic. The Southern District of New York district court, however, concluded that her innocent owner theory, taken together with the evidence submitted to support her claim, did not amount to significant probative evidence of material facts such that a rational jury could find that she was an innocent owner of Cassoni’s funds. Thus, the S.D.N.Y. district court held that, as a matter of law, the government is entitled to the forfeiture of the remaining funds in Clemente’s Merrill Lynch account, and that the government is entitled to interest which has accrued since the forfeited money was deposited in the court’s registry. Government’s motion for summary judgment granted. U.S. v. $25,829,681.80, 2002 WL 31159116 (S.D.N.Y. 2002).

New York District Court holds that funds first wired to an account in New York City and then wired overseas satisfy the 18 U.S.C. Section 1957 requirement that the offense take place in the United States. (390) Claimant was convicted in England of four counts of acquiring, possessing, or using the proceeds of criminal conduct in connection with her alleged possession of $26 million in funds obtained from various fraud victims, including a European church body. The government filed civil in rem money laundering forfeiture actions in 1998 against the funds, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 981 for violations of 18 U.S.C. Section 1957, and 18 U.S.C. Section 1343, the wire fraud statute. The government moved for partial summary judgment against the $26 million in funds held in the claimant’s Merrill Lynch accounts. Evidence presented at her jury trial in England included testimony establishing that acts which would have constituted wire fraud under American law had been committed. Evidence also showed that she knew the funds were deposited into her account as a result of this conduct, even though she was not convicted of wire fraud. The S.D.N.Y. district court thus found there to be no issue as to material fact regarding the forfeiture under Section 981(a)(1)(C). The S.D.N.Y. district court further found that since the fraud victims had first wired their funds to her New York City account, the Section 1957(d)(1) requirement --that the offense took place in the United States--had been satisfied, even though the funds were thereafter wired to a London account. Because the government had satisfied its probable cause burden, and because she was not able to carry her burden of proof, the S.D.N.Y. granted the government’s motion for partial summary judgment as to $24,848,939.00 of the funds. U.S. v. Approximately $25,829,681.80 in Funds, 2002 WL 143679 (S.D.N.Y. 2002).

North Carolina District Court grants government summary judgment in Section 1983 action challenging a forfeiture action. (390) Defendant was prosecuted for various narcotics charges, and $4700 was seized. Defendant challenged the administrative forfeiture of the cash in a 42 U.S.C. Section 1983 action against the officers who seized the cash, claiming lack of proper notice and due process violations. The officers moved for summary judgment, arguing that the facts failed to show a due process violation, qualified immunity applied, and there was no Section 1983 liability. The M.D. North Carolina district court noted that defendant still had several years in which to file a suit to set aside the forfeiture on grounds that she did not receive proper notice. The court then denied her Section 1983 suit as lacking the essential element of a violation of the Constitution or federal law. State of North Carolina v. M.R. Barrington, 2003 WL 1889092 (M.D.N.C., Apr. 11, 2003). 

North Carolina District Court grants government’s summary judgment motion against house built by claimant who admitted to purchasing building materials with drug proceeds. (390) Claimant built his house in Laredo, Texas, and it was appraised at $128,350. The government sought civil forfeiture under 21 U.S.C. Section 881(a)(6), alleging that the property represented the proceeds of illegal drug trafficking. Evidence showed that claimant and his business partner had transported over 700 pounds of marijuana from Texas to North Carolina, and his illegal sales proceeds were laundered through his tire business in Texas. He admitted that he’d used drug proceeds to purchase some of the materials used to build his house. The M.D.N.C. district court granted the government’s motion for summary judgment and forfeited the real property to the United States. U.S. v. 3714 Cancun Loop, Laredo, Texas, 2002 WL 1035457 (M.D.N.C. 2002).

Virginia district court holds that wood, that otherwise would be legal to possess, would be contraband under certain circumstances and subject to forfeiture, and thus would make innocent owner defense unavailable. (390) Jill and Wilbur Thompson were State Department employees stationed in Managua, Nicaragua in the fall of 2006. Prior to their departure from Nicaragua, the Thompsons purchased wood at a furniture and wood products exposition sponsored by the governments of Nicaragua and the United States. Upon receipt of their transfer orders, the Thompsons arranged to have their belongings (including the wood) shipped to the U.S. by the Embassy. Upon arrival in the U.S. (and after clearing customs), it came to the attention of the State Department that the shipment of the Thompsons' personal belongings contained a significant amount of wood, and the shipment raised concern as to whether these materials were properly shipped to the U.S. After an initial inspection, the State Department indicated that the wood was more appropriately categorized as “building materials” and therefore not properly designated as household effects shipped by the government. The Thompsons and various government officials, both international and domestic, exchanged a significant amount of correspondence seeking the release of the property. The United States Department of Agriculture referred the matter to the U.S. Attorney's Office, which filed a forfeiture complaint. The parties filed cross motions for summary judgment. The court granted summary judgment in favor of the government as to forfeitability because the Government established by a preponderance of the evidence that (1) the wood is of a species listed in the Convention on International Trade in Endangered Species of Wild Fauna and Flora; (2) it was imported into the United States from Nicaragua without a valid Certificate of Origin as required; and (3) it was not subject to the statutory exception to the Certificate of Origin requirement for household effects. The court also granted summary judgment in favor of the government on the innocent owner defense because the circumstances of the exportation rendered the wood illegal for claimants to possess, in turn making the innocent owner defense unavailable under the circumstances, because no person may assert an ownership interest under this subsection in contraband or other property that it is illegal to possess, which includes otherwise legal property which it is illegal to possess owing to a specific set of circumstances such as here. U.S. v. 1866-75 Board Feet and 11 Doors and Casings, More or Less, of Dipteryx Panamensis Imported from Nicaragua, 2008 WL 4999173 (E.D.Va. 2008) (November 21, 2008).

Virginia district court rules government may use claimant’s criminal plea to prove civil 

forfeiture. (390) After claimant was convicted in state court, the government seized his cannon and 67 other firearms and charged him with being a felon in possession of a firearm, 18 U.S.C. §924(g). He pleaded guilty. When the government sought summary judgment, claimant argued that his guilty plea was hearsay that could not be used to meet the government’s burden of proof. The district court disagreed and found that claimant was collaterally estopped from contesting any of the elements of his §924(g) conviction. Even were he not estopped, FRE 803(22) permits entry of guilty plea evidence to prove the elements of a forfeiture. United States v. 47 MM Cannon, 95 F.Supp.2d 545, (E.D. Va. 2000).

Wyoming District Court finds probable cause to forfeit grazing land as drug proceeds. (390) A South Florida drug smuggler active in 1985-86 bought grazing land in Wyoming in 1987, changed his name, and disappeared. When his true identity was discovered in 1996 and he was prosecuted on a 1989 narcotics indictment, the government also sought civil forfeiture of the Wyoming ranch. The district court found probable cause to believe the property was purchased with drug proceeds based on the following facts: (1) Claimant received $1.3 million for drug smuggling in 1986; (2) He purchased the Wyoming property for an unknown sum of cash in 1987; (3) He paid all his property taxes in cash; (4) He changed his name and engaged in other activities designed to conceal his identity and the source of his income; (5) He filed no income tax returns for 20 years and had no sources of legitimate income to account for his large cash expendi​tures. Because claimant offered no evidence to rebut the government’s showing of probable cause, the court granted summary judgment for the government. U.S. v. 657 Acres of Land … in Park County, Wyoming, 978 F.Supp. 799 (D. Wyoming 1997).

